
customerservices@tandridge.gov.uk   www.tandridge.gov.uk 
Tandridge District Council, Council Offices, 8 Station Road East, Oxted, Surrey 

RH8 0BT Tel: 01883 722000 - Monday-Thursday 8.30-5pm, Friday 8.30-4.30pm - 
Dx: 39359 OXTED

customerservices@tandridge.gov.uk   www.tandridge.gov.uk 
Tandridge District Council, Council Offices, 8 Station Road East, Oxted, Surrey 

RH8 0BT Tel: 01883 722000 - Monday-Thursday 8.30-5pm, Friday 8.30-4.30pm - 
Dx: 39359 OXTED

customerservices@tandridge.gov.uk   www.tandridge.gov.uk 
Tandridge District Council, Council Offices, 8 Station Road East, Oxted, Surrey 

RH8 0BT Tel: 01883 722000 - Monday-Thursday 8.30-5pm, Friday 8.30-4.30pm - 
Dx: 39359 OXTED

customerservices@tandridge.gov.uk   www.tandridge.gov.uk 
Tandridge District Council, Council Offices, 8 Station Road East, Oxted, Surrey 

RH8 0BT Tel: 01883 722000 - Monday-Thursday 8.30-5pm, Friday 8.30-4.30pm - 
Dx: 39359 OXTED

 

democraticservices@tandridge.gov.uk   Tel: 01883 722000 
www.tandridge.gov.uk/Your-council/Councillors-and-committees 

Tandridge District Council, Council Offices, 8 Station Road East, Oxted, Surrey, RH8 0BT 
 

 
  democraticservices@tandridge.gov.uk 

01883 722000 
www.tandridge.gov.uk 

  11 January 2024 
Investment Sub Committee 
Friday, 19th January, 2024 at 10.00 am 
 
 
Agenda 
The agenda for this meeting is set out below. 
 
Members of the Investment Sub Committee 
Councillor Chris Langton (Chair) Councillor Ian Booth 
Councillor Chris Botten Councillor Michael Cooper 
Councillor Chris Farr Councillor Liam Hammond 
Councillor Alun Jones  

 
Substitute Members 
Councillor Mike Crane Councillor Anna Jones 
Councillor Keith Prew  

 
If a member of the Committee is unable to attend the meeting, they should notify Democratic 
Services. If a Member of the Council, who is not a member of the Committee, would like to attend 
the meeting, please let Democratic Services know by no later than noon on the day of the meeting. 
 
If any clarification about any item of business is needed, contact should be made with officers 
before the meeting. Reports contain authors’ names and contact details. 
 
David Ford 
Chief Executive 
 

Information for the public 
 

 

This meeting will be held in the Council Chamber, Council Offices, Oxted and the public 
are welcome to attend. Doors for the Council Offices will open 15 minutes before the 
start of the meeting. 

  

 
Information about the terms of reference and membership of this Committee are 
available in the Council’s Constitution available from tinyurl.com/howTDCisrun. The 
website also provides copies of agendas, reports and minutes. 
 

 

Details of reports that will be considered at upcoming Committee meetings are 
published on the Council’s Committee Forward Plan. You can view the latest plan at 
tinyurl.com/TDCforwardplan. 

 

Public Document Pack

mailto:customerservices@tandridge.gov.uk
http://www.tandridge.gov.uk/
mailto:customerservices@tandridge.gov.uk
http://www.tandridge.gov.uk/
mailto:customerservices@tandridge.gov.uk
http://www.tandridge.gov.uk/
mailto:customerservices@tandridge.gov.uk
http://www.tandridge.gov.uk/
mailto:democraticservices@tandridge.gov.uk
http://tinyurl.com/HOWTDCISRUN
http://tinyurl.com/TDCforwardplan


 

 
AGENDA 

  
1. Apologies for absence (if any)   
  
2. Declarations of interest   

All Members present are required to declare, at this point in the meeting or as soon as 
possible thereafter: 
  
(i) any Disclosable Pecuniary Interests (DPIs) and / or 
  
(ii) other interests arising under the Code of Conduct 
  
in respect of any item(s) of business being considered at the meeting. Anyone with a DPI 
must, unless a dispensation has been granted, withdraw from the meeting during 
consideration of the relevant item of business. If in doubt, advice should be sought from the 
Monitoring Officer or her staff prior to the meeting. 
  
  

3. Minutes of the meeting held on the 3rd November 2023  (Pages 3 - 14) 
To confirm as a correct record.  
 
  

4. Summary Investment and Borrowing Position at 31st December 2023  (To Follow) 
 
  
5. Capital, Investment and Treasury Management Strategy for 2024/25  (Pages 15 - 76) 
 
  
6. Any urgent business   

To consider any other item(s) which, in the opinion of the Chair, should be considered as a 
matter of urgency – Local Government Act 1972, Section 100B(4)(b). 
  
  

7. To consider passing the following resolution to exclude the press and public   
 

R E S O L V E D – that members of the press and public be excluded from the meeting for 
agenda item 8 under Section 100A (4) of the Local Government Act 1972 (as amended) on 
the grounds that:  
  
(i)      it involves the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in Paragraph 3 of Part 

1 of Schedule 12A of the Act; and  
  
(ii)      for the item the public interest in maintaining the exemption outweighs the  
          public interest in disclosing the information. 

  
  

8. Investment Property Update  (To Follow) 
 

 



 

 

TANDRIDGE DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

INVESTMENT SUB COMMITTEE 
 
Minutes of the meeting of the Sub-Committee held in the Council Chamber, Council Offices, 
Station Road East, Oxted on the 3rd November 2023 at 10.00 am 
 
PRESENT:  Councillors Langton (Chair), Booth, Botten, Chris Farr, Hammond, Alun Jones and 
O'Driscoll (substitute in place of Cooper) 
 
ALSO PRESENT: Councillor Gaffney 
 
ALSO PRESENT (Virtually): Councillor Smith 
 
APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE: Councillor Cooper 
 
 

1. MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON THE 16TH JUNE 2023  
 
These minutes were approved and signed as a correct record.  
 
 

2. SUMMARY INVESTMENT AND BORROWING POSITION AT 30TH 
SEPTEMBER 2023  
 
A report with the investment analysis at Annexes A and B was presented. This confirmed that, 
at 30th September 2023: 
  
(i)     total long term treasury investments (over 12 months) amounted to £10.7m 
  
(ii)    short term investments (less than 12 months) amounted to £13m 
  
(iii)    the Council also held £16.5m in non-treasury investments, comprising capital loans to 

specific service providers and limited companies 
  
(iv)    the total amount of Public Works Loan Board (PWLB) loans was £99.4m, comprising 

£43.4m General Fund loans and £56m Housing Revenue Account loans.  
  
Following consultation, the Government had extended the ‘IFRS 9 statutory override’ until 
March 2025. Consequently, the General Fund would continue to be insulated from gains and 
losses in the capital value of the Council’s long-term investments in the following four funds: 
  
      CCLA Property Fund 
      Schroders Credit/Bond Fund 
      UBS Multi Asset Fund 
      CCLA Diversification Fund. 
  
 
 
 
 
 

Page 3

Agenda Item 3



 

 
 

However, the Government’s commentary on the consultation outcome suggested that the 
override might not be further extended. In that respect, the Council’s Investment Performance 
Equalisation Reserve (IPER) would mitigate against the risk of reductions in the carrying value 
of the above funds from impacting upon the General Fund balance. At the previous meeting, it 
was noted that IPER surpluses could be released to the General Fund if and when confidence 
in the assets’ market values recovered. The current carrying loss had increased to £1.5m and it 
remained uncertain whether market values would recover by the time the current override 
elapsed. The Chief Finance Officer confirmed that the 2023/24 investment outturn report (to be 
submitted to the Sub-Committee early in the next financial year) would enable Members to 
consider options for utilising investment income and use of the IPER.   
 
A Quarter 2 update on performance against the Council’s treasury and other prudential 
indicators was also submitted. This included commentary on a new Public Works Loan Board 
discounted rate for Housing Revenue Account borrowing, made available from 15th June 2023. 
Advice would be taken from Arlingclose and the Centre of Expertise on whether accessing this 
rate offered good value. (The Council’s HRA debt was currently funded by internal borrowing).  
    
            R E S O L V E D – that the following be noted: 

        
A.    the Council’s investment and borrowing position at 30th September 2023 as set out 

in Annexes A and B;  
  
B.    the Council’s actual performance against the indicators set within the Treasury 

Management Strategy for 2023/24 in Annex C; 
  
C.    the commentary from Arlingclose on the external context for treasury management; 

and 
  
D.    the update on the performance of the Council’s long-term treasury investments. 
  

 
3. INVESTMENT PROPERTY UPDATE  

 
The Sub-Committee resolved to move into ‘Part 2’ for this item in accordance with Paragraph 3 
(information relating to financial or business affairs) of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local 
Government Act 1972.  
  
Latest information was presented about the commercial investment properties owned by the 
Council and its subsidiary company, Gryllus properties. The sites concerned were: 
  
 Gryllus properties: 
  
     80-84 Station Road East, Oxted 
  
     The previous lease expired on the 17th September 2023 and a new lease was being 

negotiated.   
  
     30-32 Week Street, Maidstone 
  

The terms of a lease to a new tenant were close to being agreed, with a schedule of   
refurbishment works ready to go to tender. A dilapidations claim was also being negotiated 
with the previous tenant, details of which were discussed. The Chief Finance Officer 
explained the implications of the reduction in rental income arising from the prospective new 
lease.     

Page 4



 

 
 

Castlefield House, Reigate 
  
Members were advised about the Council’s potential approach to this asset in light of the 
next rent review and the intentions of the existing tenant.  

  
  
TDC properties: 
  
     Quadrant House, Caterham Valley  

  
Since the previous report, Subway had renewed its lease of 49 Croydon Road, details of 
which were shared with the Sub-Committee. It was also noted that Suite 1C Quadrant House 
North was being marketed following the departure of the previous tenant. An offer to let 
another area of Quadrant House and potential terms for renewal of the Workary lease were 
the subject of two separate items on the agenda.  
  

     Village Health Club, Caterham on the Hill 
  
     The tenant, Freedom Leisure, had sought financial assistance from the Council for both this 

site and Tandridge Leisure Pool in Oxted. Members were updated about the Council’s 
response to this request which, while falling short of direct financial support, included a grant 
application to England’s Swimming Pool Support Fund. Concerns regarding the current 
inability to impose service delivery standards as part of the lease agreements (which were 
limited to property contracts) for these two sites were discussed.  

  
     Council Offices, Oxted  
  
     Members were advised about a recent letting and two other lease renewals. Officers had 

continued to assess the scope for further lettings, together with potential solutions for 
increasing car parking capacity, and wished to instruct a local agent to begin marketing the 
surplus space. Potential options for assisting those working in the Council Offices to park 
elsewhere in Oxted were discussed.    

   
            R E S O L V E D – that: 
  

A.   the report be noted; and  
  

B.   the Officers’ initiative to lease more surplus space at the Council Officers be 
endorsed.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 5



 

 
 

4. PROPOSED NEW SHOP LETTING  
 
The Sub-Committee resolved to move into ‘Part 2’ for this item in accordance with Paragraph 3 
(information relating to financial or business affairs) of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local 
Government Act 1972.  
  
A report concerning an offer to let three shop units in Quadrant House, Caterham was 
considered. Opposing arguments about whether the Council should accept the offer were 
debated, which concluded with the Sub-Committee voting against.  
  
            R E C O M M E N D E D (to the Strategy & Resources Committee) that the offer from a 

prospective tenant to lease three shop units in Quadrant House be declined.  
 
 

5. THE WORKARY LEASE RENEWAL  
 
The Sub-Committee resolved to move into ‘Part 2’ for this item in accordance with Paragraph 3 
(information relating to financial or business affairs) of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local 
Government Act 1972.  
  
Wimbletech, trading as ‘The Workery’, had been occupying a unit in Quadrant House, 
Caterham as a co-working office since August 2020. The original lease had expired on  
12th August 2022 and officers had since been attempting to negotiate terms for a renewal. 
Negotiations had reached an impasse and Officers wished to seek guidance from the  
Sub-Committee on how to proceed. A report was submitted regarding officers’ proposed terms 
for the renewal of Wimbletech’s lease.       
  
            R E S O L V E D – that a renewal of the lease to Wimbletech be on the terms presented 

within the report.     
 
 
Rising 12.08 pm  
 
 

Page 6



Summary of  Investments and Borrowing

Investment

Original  Value - 

Long Term 

Treasury 

Investments

Net Asset 

Value 

31/03/23

Net Asset 

Value 

30/09/23

Yield Rate

Note 1

Forecast 

Return 

2023/24

Previous 

Year Actual 

Return

£ £ £ % £ £

Treasury Investments (Non-specified)- Long Term (over 

12 mths)

CCLA Property Fund 4,000,000 4,082,278 4,028,890 4.72 189,999 173,997

Schroders Bond Fund 3,000,000 2,550,204 2,581,908 5.85 151,110 149,038

UBS Multi Asset Fund 3,000,000 2,208,433 2,069,445 7.49 154,957 145,657

CCLA Diversification Fund 2,000,000 1,864,707 1,835,035 3.56 65,280 56,357

Funding Circle 142,398 148,766 - 6,371 20,249

Sub Total Non-specified (Treasury Investments) 12,000,000 10,848,020 10,664,044 567,717 545,299

Treasury Investments (Specified)-Short Term (less than 

12 mths)

Liquidity Plus Funds 1,994,226 1,998,272 4.51 90,059 37,475

Money Market Funds 4,000,000 11,000,000 5.10 465,148 394,562

Total Specified Investments 5,994,226 12,998,272 555,207 432,037

Total Treasury Investments 16,842,246 23,662,316 1,122,924 977,336

Non-Treasury Investments (Non-Specified)- Long Term 

(over 12 mths)

Gryllus Property Company Loan - Maidstone 2,394,000 2,394,000 5.81 139,023 139,023

Freedom Leisure- Loan (TLP) 387,429 290,571 5.50 21,309 31,963

Freedom Leisure- Loan (de Stafford) 248,286 186,214 7.58 18,820 28,230

Gryllus Property Company Loan - 80-84 Station Rd East 1,012,500 1,012,500 5.43 54,979 54,979

Gryllus Property Company Loan - Castlefield 11,664,000 11,664,000 6.10 711,504 711,504

Gryllus Property Company Share Capital Note 2 994,100 994,100 - - -

Sub Total Non-Treasury Investments 16,700,314 16,541,386 945,634 965,699

Total Investments (Treasury & Non-Treasury) 33,542,561 40,203,701 2,068,558 1,943,035

Total Investment Income Budget 2023/24 1,495,700 1,495,700

Over/(under) budget 572,858 447,335

Annex ‘A’ Annex ‘A’

Page 7



Borrowing
Balance as at 

30/09/23
Interest

Forecast 

Cost 

2023/24

Period to 

maturity

Previous 

Year Cost

£ % £ (years) £

General Fund Borrowing

Gryllus Loan 3,420,000 2.46 84,132 44 84,132

Freedom Leisure Loan 2,225,000 2.45 54,513 44 54,513

Village Health Club 938,678 2.38 22,341 44 22,341

Linden House 4,175,000 2.69 112,308 25 112,308

Linden House 254,000 2.42 6,147 26 6,147

Quadrant House 15,340,000 2.41 369,694 45 369,694

Quadrant House 800,000 2.28 18,240 46 18,240

Gryllus - 80-84 Station Road 724,400 2.28 16,516 46 16,516

Gryllus - Castlefield 15,549,000 2.91 452,476 46 452,476

Sub Total General Fund Borrowing 43,426,078 1,136,366 1,136,366

Total GF PWLB Budget 2023/24 1,137,000 1,137,000

Over/(under) budget (634) (634)

HRA Borrowing

Public Works Loan Board 55,989,000 2.72 1,520,196 13 1,596,258

Sub Total HRA Borrowing 55,989,000 1,520,196 1,596,258

Total HRA PWLB Budget 2023/24 1,639,600 1,639,600

Over/(under) budget (119,404) (43,342)

Total Borrowing 99,415,078 2,656,562 2,732,624

Total Budget 2023/24 2,776,600 2,776,600

Total Over/(under) budget (120,038) (43,976)

Net borrowing balance at 30 September 2023 (Total 

Borrowing less Treasury Investments)
82,572,832

Notes:

1. Yield Rate:

For Specified and Non specified Investments, this is the forecast return divided by net asset value as at 30/09/23; 

For Specified investments, this is the forecast return divided by the average investment value during the year

3. The period to maturity included for HRA borrowing is the weighted average for all loans outstanding.

2. Gryllus share capital comprises of equity shares arising from loans granted

Page 8



M
ar

ke
t 

V
al

u
e 

o
f 

Lo
n

g 
Te

rm
 In

ve
st

m
en

ts
 a

t 
3

0
/0

9
/2

0
2

3

2
0

1
7

/1
8

2
0

1
8

/1
9

2
0

1
9

/2
0

2
0

2
0

/2
1

2
0

2
1

/2
2

2
0

2
2

/2
3

2
0

2
3

/2
4

C
ar

ry
in

g 
V

al
u

e

C
ar

ry
in

g 

V
al

u
e

C
ar

ry
in

g 

V
al

u
e

C
ar

ry
in

g 

V
al

u
e

C
ar

ry
in

g 

V
al

u
e

C
ar

ry
in

g 

V
al

u
e

C
ar

ry
in

g 

V
al

u
e

C
ar

ry
in

g 

V
al

u
e

3
1

.3
.2

0
1

8
3

1
.3

.2
0

1
9

3
1

.0
3

.2
0

2
0

3
1

.0
3

.2
0

2
1

3
1

.0
3

.2
0

2
2

3
1

.0
3

.2
0

2
3

3
0

.0
9

.2
0

2
3

£
£

£
£

£
£

£

C
C

LA
 P

ro
p

er
ty

 F
u

n
d

4
,0

0
0

,0
0

0
4

,0
0

0
,0

0
0

4
,0

0
0

,0
0

0
4

,0
0

0
,0

0
0

4
,0

0
0

,0
0

0
4

,0
0

0
,0

0
0

4
,0

0
0

,0
0

0

Sc
h

ro
d

er
s 

B
o

n
d

 F
u

n
d

3
,0

0
0

,0
0

0
3

,0
0

0
,0

0
0

3
,0

0
0

,0
0

0
3

,0
0

0
,0

0
0

3
,0

0
0

,0
0

0
3

,0
0

0
,0

0
0

3
,0

0
0

,0
0

0

U
B

S 
M

u
lt

i A
ss

et
 F

u
n

d
3

,0
0

0
,0

0
0

3
,0

0
0

,0
0

0
3

,0
0

0
,0

0
0

3
,0

0
0

,0
0

0
3

,0
0

0
,0

0
0

3
,0

0
0

,0
0

0
3

,0
0

0
,0

0
0

C
C

LA
 D

iv
er

si
fi

ca
ti

o
n

 F
u

n
d

2
,0

0
0

,0
0

0
2

,0
0

0
,0

0
0

2
,0

0
0

,0
0

0
2

,0
0

0
,0

0
0

2
,0

0
0

,0
0

0
2

,0
0

0
,0

0
0

2
,0

0
0

,0
0

0

To
ta

l
1

2
,0

0
0

,0
0

0
1

2
,0

0
0

,0
0

0
1

2
,0

0
0

,0
0

0
1

2
,0

0
0

,0
0

0
1

2
,0

0
0

,0
0

0
1

2
,0

0
0

,0
0

0
1

2
,0

0
0

,0
0

0

2
0

1
7

/1
8

2
0

1
8

/1
9

2
0

1
9

/2
0

2
0

2
0

/2
1

2
0

2
1

/2
2

2
0

2
2

/2
3

2
0

2
3

/2
4

M
ar

ke
t 

V
al

u
e

M
ar

ke
t 

V
al

u
e

M
ar

ke
t 

V
al

u
e

M
ar

ke
t 

V
al

u
e

M
ar

ke
t 

V
al

u
e

M
ar

ke
t 

V
al

u
e

M
ar

ke
t 

V
al

u
e

M
ar

ke
t 

V
al

u
e

3
1

.3
.2

0
1

8
3

1
.3

.2
0

1
9

3
1

.0
3

.2
0

2
0

3
1

.0
3

.2
0

2
1

3
1

.0
3

.2
0

2
2

3
1

.0
3

.2
0

2
3

3
0

.0
9

.2
0

2
3

£
£

£
£

£
£

£

C
C

LA
 P

ro
p

er
ty

 F
u

n
d

(m
id

-m
ar

ke
t 

va
lu

e)
4

,2
7

6
,8

5
4

4
,2

7
6

,0
0

5
4

,1
8

8
,0

6
3

4
,1

5
8

,1
8

3
4

,8
8

8
,0

5
6

4
,0

8
2

,2
7

8
4

,0
2

8
,8

9
0

Sc
h

ro
d

er
s 

B
o

n
d

 F
u

n
d

2
,9

1
2

,8
3

7
2

,8
6

5
,1

3
0

2
,5

3
9

,9
3

8
2

,9
0

8
,9

1
1

2
,7

7
5

,1
5

1
2

,5
5

0
,2

0
4

2
,5

8
1

,9
0

8

U
B

S 
M

u
lt

i A
ss

et
 F

u
n

d
2

,9
1

8
,1

6
0

2
,8

6
8

,4
7

9
2

,5
2

0
,7

1
3

2
,7

7
7

,3
9

8
2

,6
3

9
,5

9
2

2
,2

0
8

,4
3

3
2

,0
6

9
,4

4
5

C
C

LA
 D

iv
er

si
fi

ca
ti

o
n

 F
u

n
d

 (
in

d
ic

at
iv

e 
m

ar
ke

t 
va

lu
e)

1
,9

2
1

,2
5

7
1

,9
8

2
,1

6
7

1
,8

0
4

,1
9

3
1

,9
5

5
,8

7
4

2
,0

4
6

,5
1

3
1

,8
6

4
,7

0
7

1
,8

3
5

,0
3

5

To
ta

l
1

2
,0

2
9

,1
0

8
1

1
,9

9
1

,7
8

1
1

1
,0

5
2

,9
0

7
1

1
,8

0
0

,3
6

6
1

2
,3

4
9

,3
1

3
1

0
,7

0
5

,6
2

2
1

0
,5

1
5

,2
7

8

2
0

1
7

/1
8

2
0

1
8

/1
9

2
0

1
9

/2
0

2
0

2
0

/2
1

2
0

2
1

/2
2

2
0

2
2

/2
3

2
0

2
3

/2
4

Su
rp

lu
s/

(D
e

fi
ci

t)

Su
rp

lu
s/

(D
e

fi
ci

t)

Su
rp

lu
s/

(D
e

fi
ci

t)

Su
rp

lu
s/

(D
e

fi
ci

t)

Su
rp

lu
s/

(D
e

fi
ci

t)

Su
rp

lu
s/

(D
e

fi
ci

t)

Su
rp

lu
s/

(D
e

fi
ci

t)

Su
rp

lu
s/

(D
e

fi
ci

t)

3
1

.3
.2

0
1

8
3

1
.3

.2
0

1
9

3
1

.0
3

.2
0

2
0

3
1

.0
3

.2
0

2
1

3
1

.0
3

.2
0

2
2

3
1

.0
3

.2
0

2
3

3
0

.0
9

.2
0

2
3

£
£

£
£

£
£

£

C
C

LA
 P

ro
p

er
ty

 F
u

n
d

2
7

6
,8

5
4

2
7

6
,0

0
5

1
8

8
,0

6
3

1
5

8
,1

8
3

8
8

8
,0

5
6

8
2

,2
7

8
2

8
,8

9
0

Sc
h

ro
d

er
s 

B
o

n
d

 F
u

n
d

(8
7

,1
6

3
)

(1
3

4
,8

7
0

)
(4

6
0

,0
6

2
)

(9
1

,0
8

9
)

(2
2

4
,8

4
9

)
(4

4
9

,7
9

6
)

(4
1

8
,0

9
2

)

U
B

S 
M

u
lt

i A
ss

et
 F

u
n

d
(8

1
,8

4
0

)
(1

3
1

,5
2

1
)

(4
7

9
,2

8
7

)
(2

2
2

,6
0

2
)

(3
6

0
,4

0
8

)
(7

9
1

,5
6

7
)

(9
3

0
,5

5
5

)

C
C

LA
 D

iv
er

si
fi

ca
ti

o
n

 F
u

n
d

(7
8

,7
4

3
)

(1
7

,8
3

3
)

(1
9

5
,8

0
7

)
(4

4
,1

2
6

)
4

6
,5

1
3

(1
3

5
,2

9
3

)
(1

6
4

,9
6

5
)

To
ta

l
2

9
,1

0
8

(8
,2

1
9

)
(9

4
7

,0
9

3
)

(1
9

9
,6

3
4

)
3

4
9

,3
1

3
(1

,2
9

4
,3

7
8

)
(1

,4
8

4
,7

2
2

)

Annex ‘B’ Annex ‘B’

Page 9



G
ro

ss
 R

e
ve

n
u

e
 Y

ie
ld

Y
ie

ld
Y

ie
ld

Y
ie

ld
Y

ie
ld

Y
ie

ld
Y

ie
ld

Y
ie

ld
Y

ie
ld

Y
ie

ld
Y

ie
ld

Y
ie

ld
Y

ie
ld

Y
ie

ld
Y

ie
ld

2
0

1
7

/1
8

2
0

1
7

/1
8

2
0

1
8

/1
9

2
0

1
8

/1
9

2
0

1
9

/2
0

2
0

1
9

/2
0

2
0

2
0

/2
1

2
0

2
0

/2
1

2
0

2
1

/2
2

2
0

2
1

/2
2

2
0

2
2

/2
3

2
0

2
2

/2
3

2
0

2
3

/2
4

2
0

2
3

/2
4

£
%

£
%

£
%

£
%

£
%

£
%

£
%

C
C

LA
 P

ro
p

er
ty

 F
u

n
d

1
9

3
,7

5
8

4
.5

3
%

1
8

3
,9

8
9

4
.3

0
%

1
8

5
,2

4
0

4
.4

2
%

1
7

9
,9

1
0

4
.3

3
%

1
5

8
,8

6
7

3
.8

2
%

1
7

3
,9

9
7

4
.2

6
%

1
8

9
,9

9
9

4
.7

2
%

Sc
h

ro
d

er
s 

B
o

n
d

 F
u

n
d

1
0

5
,4

1
3

3
.6

2
%

1
2

0
,5

0
8

4
.2

1
%

1
2

4
,4

1
8

4
.9

0
%

1
2

5
,5

2
9

4
.3

2
%

1
2

8
,4

5
5

4
.4

2
%

1
4

9
,0

3
8

5
.8

4
%

1
5

1
,1

1
0

5
.8

5
%

U
B

S 
M

u
lt

i A
ss

et
 F

u
n

d
1

4
6

,7
8

8
5

.0
3

%
1

1
6

,5
1

3
4

.0
6

%
1

3
7

,5
3

1
5

.4
6

%
1

4
0

,1
7

1
5

.0
5

%
1

2
0

,6
5

4
4

.3
4

%
1

4
5

,6
5

7
6

.6
0

%
1

5
4

,9
5

7
7

.4
9

%

C
C

LA
 D

iv
er

si
fi

ca
ti

o
n

 F
u

n
d

6
2

,7
3

2
3

.2
7

%
6

7
,0

3
0

3
.3

8
%

6
6

,2
8

4
3

.6
7

%
6

2
,0

6
9

3
.1

7
%

4
8

,8
7

1
2

.5
0

%
5

6
,3

5
7

3
.0

2
%

6
5

,2
8

0
3

.5
6

%

To
ta

l
5

0
8

,6
9

1
4

8
8

,0
4

0
5

1
3

,4
7

3
5

0
7

,6
7

9
4

5
6

,8
4

7
5

2
5

,0
5

0
5

6
1

,3
4

6

Su
rp

lu
s/

(D
e

fi
ci

t)
- 

C
ap

it
al

 V
al

u
e

Su
rp

lu
s/

(D
e

fi
ci

t)

Su
rp

lu
s/

(D
e

fi
ci

t)

Su
rp

lu
s/

(D
e

fi
ci

t)

Su
rp

lu
s/

(D
e

fi
ci

t)

Su
rp

lu
s/

(D
e

fi
ci

t)

Su
rp

lu
s/

(D
e

fi
ci

t)

Su
rp

lu
s/

(D
e

fi
ci

t)

Su
rp

lu
s/

(D
e

fi
ci

t)

Su
rp

lu
s/

(D
e

fi
ci

t)

Su
rp

lu
s/

(D
e

fi
ci

t)

Su
rp

lu
s/

(D
e

fi
ci

t)

Su
rp

lu
s/

(D
e

fi
ci

t)

Su
rp

lu
s/

(D
e

fi
ci

t)

Su
rp

lu
s/

(D
e

fi
ci

t)

2
0

1
7

/1
8

2
0

1
7

/1
8

2
0

1
8

/1
9

2
0

1
8

/1
9

2
0

1
9

/2
0

2
0

1
9

/2
0

2
0

2
0

/2
1

2
0

2
0

/2
1

2
0

2
1

/2
2

2
0

2
1

/2
2

2
0

2
2

/2
3

2
0

2
2

/2
3

2
0

2
3

/2
4

2
0

2
3

/2
4

£
%

£
%

£
%

£
%

£
%

£
%

£
%

C
C

LA
 P

ro
p

er
ty

 F
u

n
d

1
9

3
,8

6
8

4
.5

3
%

(8
4

9
)

-0
.0

2
%

(8
7

,9
4

2
)

-2
.1

0
%

(2
9

,8
8

0
)

-0
.7

2
%

7
2

9
,8

7
3

1
4

.9
3

%
(8

0
5

,7
7

8
)

-1
9

.7
4

%
(5

3
,3

8
8

)
-1

.3
3

%

Sc
h

ro
d

er
s 

B
o

n
d

 F
u

n
d

(5
0

,7
2

6
)

-1
.7

4
%

(4
7

,7
0

7
)

-1
.6

7
%

(3
2

5
,1

9
2

)
-1

2
.8

0
%

3
6

8
,9

7
3

1
2

.6
8

%
(1

3
3

,7
6

0
)

-4
.8

2
%

(2
2

4
,9

4
7

)
-8

.8
2

%
3

1
,7

0
4

1
.2

3
%

U
B

S 
M

u
lt

i A
ss

et
 F

u
n

d
(1

0
0

,5
4

5
)

-3
.4

5
%

(4
9

,6
8

1
)

-1
.7

3
%

(3
4

7
,7

6
6

)
-1

3
.8

0
%

2
5

6
,6

8
5

9
.2

4
%

(1
3

7
,8

0
5

)
-5

.2
2

%
(4

3
1

,1
5

9
)

-1
9

.5
2

%
(1

3
8

,9
8

8
)

-6
.7

2
%

C
C

LA
 D

iv
er

si
fi

ca
ti

o
n

 F
u

n
d

(7
8

,7
4

3
)

-4
.1

0
%

6
0

,9
1

0
3

.0
7

%
(1

7
7

,9
7

4
)

-9
.8

6
%

1
5

1
,6

8
2

7
.7

6
%

9
0

,6
3

9
4

.4
3

%
(1

8
1

,8
0

6
)

-9
.7

5
%

(2
9

,6
7

2
)

-1
.6

2
%

To
ta

l
(3

6
,1

4
6

)
(3

7
,3

2
7

)
(9

3
8

,8
7

4
)

7
4

7
,4

6
0

5
4

8
,9

4
6

(1
,6

4
3

,6
9

1
)

(1
9

0
,3

4
4

)

N
e

t 
Y

ie
ld

N
e

t 
Y

ie
ld

N
e

t 
Y

ie
ld

N
e

t 
Y

ie
ld

N
e

t 
Y

ie
ld

N
e

t 
Y

ie
ld

N
e

t 
Y

ie
ld

N
e

t 
Y

ie
ld

N
e

t 
Y

ie
ld

N
e

t 
Y

ie
ld

N
e

t 
Y

ie
ld

N
e

t 
Y

ie
ld

N
e

t 
Y

ie
ld

N
e

t 
Y

ie
ld

N
e

t 
Y

ie
ld

2
0

1
7

/1
8

2
0

1
7

/1
8

2
0

1
8

/1
9

2
0

1
8

/1
9

2
0

1
9

/2
0

2
0

1
9

/2
0

2
0

2
0

/2
1

2
0

2
0

/2
1

2
0

2
1

/2
2

2
0

2
1

/2
2

2
0

2
2

/2
3

2
0

2
2

/2
3

2
0

2
3

/2
4

2
0

2
3

/2
4

£
%

£
%

£
%

£
%

£
%

£
%

£
%

C
C

LA
 P

ro
p

er
ty

 F
u

n
d

3
8

7
,6

2
6

9
.0

6
%

1
8

3
,1

4
0

4
.2

8
%

9
7

,2
9

8
2

.3
2

%
1

5
0

,0
3

0
3

.6
1

%
8

8
8

,7
4

0
1

8
.1

8
%

(6
3

1
,7

8
1

)
-1

5
.4

8
%

1
3

6
,6

1
1

3
.3

9
%

Sc
h

ro
d

er
s 

B
o

n
d

 F
u

n
d

5
4

,6
8

7
1

.8
8

%
7

2
,8

0
1

2
.5

4
%

(2
0

0
,7

7
4

)
-7

.9
0

%
4

9
4

,5
0

3
1

7
.0

0
%

(5
,3

0
5

)
-0

.1
9

%
(7

5
,9

0
9

)
-2

.9
8

%
1

8
2

,8
1

4
7

.0
8

%

U
B

S 
M

u
lt

i A
ss

et
 F

u
n

d
4

6
,2

4
3

1
.5

8
%

6
6

,8
3

2
2

.3
3

%
(2

1
0

,2
3

5
)

-8
.3

4
%

3
9

6
,8

5
6

1
4

.2
9

%
(1

7
,1

5
2

)
-0

.6
5

%
(2

8
5

,5
0

2
)

-1
2

.9
3

%
1

5
,9

6
9

0
.7

7
%

C
C

LA
 D

iv
er

si
fi

ca
ti

o
n

 F
u

n
d

(1
6

,0
1

1
)

-0
.8

3
%

1
2

7
,9

4
0

6
.4

5
%

(1
1

1
,6

9
0

)
-6

.1
9

%
2

1
3

,7
5

1
1

0
.9

3
%

1
3

9
,5

1
0

6
.8

2
%

(1
2

5
,4

4
9

)
-6

.7
3

%
3

5
,6

0
8

1
.9

4
%

To
ta

l
4

7
2

,5
4

5
4

5
0

,7
1

3
(4

2
5

,4
0

1
)

1
,2

5
5

,1
3

9
1

,0
0

5
,7

9
4

(1
,1

1
8

,6
4

1
)

3
7

1
,0

0
2

P
ee

r 
to

 P
ee

r 
In

ve
st

m
e

n
t 

2
0

1
7

/1
8

2
0

1
7

/1
8

2
0

1
8

/1
9

2
0

1
8

/1
9

2
0

1
9

/2
0

2
0

1
9

/2
0

2
0

2
0

/2
1

2
0

2
0

/2
1

2
0

2
1

/2
2

2
0

2
1

/2
2

2
0

2
2

/2
3

2
0

2
2

/2
3

2
0

2
3

/2
4

2
0

2
3

/2
4

Fu
n

d
in

g 
C

ir
cl

e
£

%
£

%
£

%
£

%
£

%
£

%
£

%

C
ar

ry
in

g 
V

al
u

e
2

,0
7

5
,3

4
1

2
,0

5
6

,6
6

4
1

,8
3

1
,0

2
8

8
6

3
,1

6
0

3
9

1
,1

9
1

1
4

2
,3

9
8

1
4

8
,7

6
6

In
te

re
st

 P
ai

d
 b

y 
B

o
rr

o
w

er
s

1
8

1
,0

1
4

1
8

4
,6

5
4

1
9

3
,1

7
0

1
2

7
,9

8
2

6
6

,7
4

9
2

8
,6

6
4

6
,5

1
9

Le
ss

 F
C

 S
er

vi
ce

 f
ee

(1
9

,6
6

8
)

(1
9

,7
2

9
)

(1
9

,6
1

1
)

(1
2

,4
6

2
)

(6
,2

7
9

)
(2

,5
3

1
)

(5
2

8
)

P
ro

m
o

ti
o

n
s/

Tr
an

sf
er

 p
ay

m
en

t
4

7
0

0
0

0
0

B
ad

 D
eb

ts
(6

1
,2

8
8

)
(1

1
1

,1
5

2
)

(1
2

7
,6

4
9

)
(8

0
,8

8
1

)
(3

6
,1

0
3

)
(2

0
,9

4
1

)
(4

,4
0

0
)

R
ec

o
ve

ri
es

1
4

,7
8

0
2

7
,4

2
8

3
0

,2
5

3
4

2
,4

3
1

6
2

,7
6

9
1

5
,0

5
7

4
,7

8
0

N
e

t 
Y

ie
ld

 
1

1
4

,8
3

8
5

.5
3

%
8

1
,2

0
1

3
.9

5
%

7
6

,6
3

4
4

.1
9

%
7

7
,0

7
0

8
.9

3
%

8
7

,1
3

6
7

.1
2

%
2

0
,2

4
9

4
.0

3
%

6
,3

7
1

8
.5

7
%

P
ro

vi
si

o
n

s 
fo

r 
fu

tu
re

 lo
ss

e
s

0
(1

0
,0

0
0

)

Fu
ll

 Y
e

ar
 f

o
re

ca
st

 a
t 

3
0

.0
9

.2
0

2
3

Fu
ll

 Y
e

ar
 f

o
re

ca
st

 a
t 

3
0

.0
9

.2
0

2
3

Fu
ll

 Y
e

ar
 f

o
re

ca
st

 a
t 

3
0

.0
9

.2
0

2
3

3
0

.0
9

.2
0

2
3

Page 10



Prudential Indicators – Q2 2023/24 

The 2021 Prudential and Treasury Management Codes require the Council to report on prudential 

indicators on a quarterly basis. These indicators report on capital expenditure, borrowing and 

commercial and service investments in light of overall organisational strategy and resources, and ensure 

that decisions are being made with sufficient regard to the long-run financing implications and potential 

risks to the Council. 

Table 1 – Estimates of Capital Expenditure 

Capital expenditure refers to Council spending on assets such as infrastructure, property or vehicles that 

will be used for more than one year. In Local Government this includes spending on assets owned by 

other bodies and loans and grants to other bodies, enabling them to buy assets. 

At Month 5 the Council was forecasting total capital expenditure for 2023/24 of £19.8m. This is a 

variance of £0.6m compared to what was reported in the 2023/24 Capital, Investment and Treasury 

Management Strategy. This is the result of unspent budget carry forwards from 2022/23 agreed since 

the Strategy was published, offset by forecast underspends in-year on Council House Building (£3.9m), 

Croydon Road Regeneration (£2.3m) and capital contributions to third parties from CIL (£2.1m). 

Table 2 – Capital Financing Requirement 

The Council’s cumulative outstanding amount of debt finance is measured by the Capital Financing 

Requirement (CFR). This increases with new debt-financed capital expenditure on service delivery and on 

investments and reduces with MRP and capital receipts used to replace debt. 

The current estimated CFR for 2023/24 is £1.4m lower than what was estimated in the 2023/24 Capital, 

Investment and Treasury Management Strategy. This is based on forecast capital expenditure at Month 

5, and is a result of forecast underspends on capital schemes, including those referenced in Table 1, 

which reduce the anticipated underlying need to borrow to finance them. 

2022/23 

Actual 

£m 

2023/24 Estimate 

(Capital Strategy) 

£m 

2023/24 

Forecast 

£m 

2024/25 

Budget 

£m 

2025/26 

Budget 

£m 

Total – 2023/24 

to 2025/26 

£m 

General Fund services 4.9 3.8 3.7 2.8 1.8 8.2 

Council Housing (HRA) 11.5 15.4 16.1 12.7 3.9 32.8 

Total 16.4 19.2 19.8 15.5 5.7 41.0 

31/03/2023 

Actual 

£m 

31/03/2024 Estimate 

(Capital Strategy) 

£m 

31/03/2024 

Forecast 

£m 

31/03/2025 

Budget 

£m 

31/03/2026 

Budget 

£m 

General Fund services 46.9 47.6 48.0 48.1 47.7 

Council Housing (HRA) 61.7 71.5 69.7 74.6 74.6 

Total CFR 108.5 119.1 117.7 122.7 122.3 

Annex ‘C’ Annex ‘C’

Page 11



Table 3 – Gross Debt and the Capital Financing Requirement 

Statutory guidance is that debt should remain below the capital financing requirement, except in the 

short term. The Council has complied and expects to continue to comply with this requirement in the 

medium term as is shown below. 

The current estimated level of gross debt is £6.1m less than what was estimated in the 2023/24 Capital, 

Investment and Treasury Management Strategy. This is based on forecast capital expenditure at M5, and 

is a result of forecast underspends on the schemes referenced in Table 1 which reduce the anticipated 

requirement to borrow to finance them. 

Table 4 – Debt and the Authorised Limit and Operational Boundary 

The Council is legally obliged to set an affordable borrowing limit (also termed the Authorised Limit for 

external debt) each year and to keep it under review. In line with statutory guidance, a lower 

“operational boundary” is also set as a warning level should debt approach the limit. These limits were 

set in the 2023/24 Capital, Investment and Treasury Management Strategy. The Council has complied 

with the limits at Q2 2023/24. 

31/03/2023 

Actual 

£m 

31/03/2024 

Estimate 

(Capital 

Strategy) 

£m 

31/03/2024 

Forecast 

£m 

31/03/2025 

Budget 

£m 

31/03/2026 

Budget 

£m 

Debt at 

30/09/2023 

£m 

Debt (incl. PFI 

& leases) 99.4 112.7 106.6 109.3 106.5 99.4 

Capital 

Financing 

Requirement 

108.5 119.1 117.7 122.7 122.3 

Maximum 

Debt Q2 

2023/24 

£m 

Debt at 

30/09/2023 

£m 

2023/24 

Authorised 

Limit 

£m 

2023/24 

Operational 

Boundary 

£m 

Complied? 

Borrowing 99.4 99.4 150.0 140.0 

✓PFI and Finance Leases - - - - 

Total debt 99.4 99.4 150.0 140.0 

Page 12



Table 5 – Net Income from Commercial and Service Investments to Net Revenue Stream 

The Council’s income from commercial and service investments as a proportion of its net revenue stream 

has been and is expected to be as indicated below. This is unchanged from the 2023/24 Capital, 

Investment & Treasury Management Strategy. 

Table 6 – Proportion of financing costs to net revenue stream 

Although capital expenditure is not charged directly to the revenue budget, interest payable on loans 

and MRP are charged to revenue. The proportion of financing costs to net revenue stream is expected to 

rise marginally compared to what was reported in the 2023/24 Capital, Investment & Treasury 

Management Strategy. 

2022/23 

Actual 

£m 

2023/24 

Estimate 

(Capital 

Strategy) 

£m 

2023/24 

Forecast 

£m 

2024/25 

Budget 

£m 

2025/26 

Budget 

£m 

Total net income from service 

and commercial investments 1.7 1.7 1.7 1.7 1.7 

Proportion of net revenue 

stream 15% 14% 14% 14% 14% 

2022/23 

Actual 

£m 

2023/24 

Estimate 

(Capital 

Strategy) 

£m 

2023/24 

Forecast 

£m 

2024/25 

Budget 

£m 

2025/26 

Budget 

£m 

General Fund – Financing costs 2.3 2.0 2.3 2.0 2.1 

Proportion of net revenue 

stream 

20% 17% 19% 17% 18% 

Page 13



Table 7 – Maturity Structure of Borrowing 

This indicator is set to control the Council’s exposure to refinancing risk. The upper and lower limits on 

the maturity structure of all borrowing are as below, all of which the Council complied with at Q2 of 

2023/24. 

Table 8 – Long-term Treasury Management Investments 

The purpose of this indicator is to control the Authority’s exposure to the risk of incurring losses by 

seeking early repayment of its investments. Long-term investments with no fixed maturity date include 

strategic pooled funds, real estate investment trusts and directly held equity but exclude money market 

funds and bank accounts with no fixed maturity date as these are considered short-term. The prudential 

limits on the long-term treasury management limits are as below, and the Council has complied with 

these as at Q2 of 2023/24. 

Upper Limit 

2023/24 

% 

Lower Limit 

2023/24 

% 

Actual at 

30/09/23 

% 

Complied? 

Under 1 year 15 - 3% 

Yes 

1 to 2 years 15 - 3% 

2 to 5 years 25 - 13% 

5 to 10 years 50 - 20% 

More than 10 years 50 - 4% 

Over 20 years 70 - 56% 

Total 100% 

2023/24 

£m 

2024/25 

£m 

No fixed date 

£m 

Limit on principal invested beyond 

year end 
16 16 16 

Actual principal invested beyond 

year end 
- - 10.7 

Complied? Yes Yes Yes 

Page 14



Capital, Investment and Treasury Management 

Strategy 

 

Investment Sub Committee Friday, 19 January 

2024 

 

Report of:  Director of Resources (Section 151) 

 

Purpose:  For decision 

 

Publication status: Unrestricted 

 

Wards affected: All 

 

Executive summary:  

This report submits the Council’s Capital, Investment and Treasury Management 
Strategy for 2024/25 for approval by this Sub Committee, in advance of it going 

forward for approval by Strategy & Resources Committee on 30th January 2024 
and by Full Council on 8th February 2024. 

 

This report supports the Council’s priority of: Building a better Council/ 
Creating the homes, infrastructure and environment we need/ Supporting 

economic recovery in Tandridge/ Becoming a greener, more sustainable District. 

 

Contact officer Nikki O'Connor – Strategic Finance Business Partner 
(Corporate Finance)  

nicola.oconnor@surreycc.gov.uk 

Mark Hak Sanders – Director of Resources (s151) 

MHakSanders@tandridge.gov.uk 

 

Recommendation to Committee: 

That this Committee recommends to Strategy & Resources Committee and then 

Council the approval of the Capital, Investment and Treasury Management 
Strategy for 2024/25. 

________________________________________________________ 

 

Page 15

Agenda Item 5



 

Reason for recommendation: 

The Strategy is required to ensure compliance with the Chartered Institute of 
Public Finance and Accountancy’s Treasury Management in the Public Services: 
Code of Practice 2021 Edition (the CIPFA Code). 

_________________________________________________________ 

Introduction and background 

1 The Capital, Investment and Treasury Management Strategy provides a 
high level overview of how capital expenditure, capital financing and 

treasury management activity contribute towards the delivery of the 
Council’s priorities, along with an explanation of how risk, security and 
liquidity are managed. 

 
2 The aim of the Strategy is to provide a framework within which the 

Council’s Capital Investment Plans will be delivered. It provides a 
summary of the Council’s capital expenditure plans and how these are 
to be financed, along with the principles and governance arrangements 

which apply to the management of the Capital Programme. 
 

3 The Strategy also covers Treasury Management activity, which is the 
management of the Council’s cash flows, borrowing and investments, 
and the associated risks. 

 
4 The Council’s Investment Property Strategy is included within this 

document. This aims to provide a robust framework for property 
investments towards the pursuance of redevelopment and regeneration 
opportunities. 

 

Changes by comparison to 2023/24 Strategy 

 

5 The 2024/25 document makes the following main changes to the 

previously published document, excluding minor wording updates and 
updates to / explanation of current-year numerical values: 
 

Reference Change Rationale 

Paragraph 1.1 and 
1.5 

Remove reference to 
Strategic Plan 

Future strategies will 
refer to the Corporate 
Plan once adopted. 

Paragraph 2.1 Addition of references 
to infrastructure and 

housing. 

A more balanced 
representation of the 

capital programme. 

Paragraph 2.8 Updated references to 

the key elements of 
the Capital 

Programme 

Annual refresh. 

Page 16



Reference Change Rationale 

Paragraph 2.13 Additional wording to 
explain that we have 

no choice on 
excluding the HRA 
from MRP charge.  

Clearer that this is not 
a local choice. 

Paragraph 2.16 Clearer explanation of 
CFR – relating to the 

need to borrow rather 
than outstanding 

debt. 

Clarity of terminology. 

Paragraph 2.18 Narrative to explain 

that whilst the HRA 
CFR is increasing, the 
General Fund CFR is 

decreasing. 

Clearer that the 

borrowing 
requirement in the 
General Fund is 

reducing. 

Paragraph 2.22 and 

2.23 

Revised explanation 

to reflect latest capital 
financing cost 

projections. 

Updates to reflect 

latest forecast. 

Paragraph 3.1 Additional narrative 

required to explain 
how investments are 
defined. 

Complying with best 

practice. 

Paragraph 3.7 Removal of duplicate 
text. 

Clarity of text. 

Paragraph 3.13 Inclusion of ‘local 
commercial property’ 

in types of investment 
holdings. 

Reflecting the mixed 
use of Quadrant 

House (Retail & 
Offices). 

Paragraph 3.15 Clarify that 
Committee would be 
involved in decisions 

on alternate uses for 
investment 

properties.  

Clarity of Governance. 

Paragraph 3.18 Clarity that the 

Council does not have 
amounts that the 
Council is 

contractually 
committed to lend, or 

third party 
guarantees. 

Clarity of text. 

Appendix B – 
Approval of Capital 
Investment 

Remove Reference to 
PFI 
 

 

No longer relevant. 
 
 

 

Page 17



Reference Change Rationale 

Appendix B – 
Approval of Capital 

Investment 

Additional reference 
to Peer Review. 

Strengthen 
governance and share 

best practice. 

Appendix B - Service 

Challenge & Review, 
Efficient Use of 
Assets 

 

Additional reference 

to Member approval. 

Clarity of Governance. 

Appendix C – 

Paragraphs 18 and 
25 

Removal of detailed 

delegation to Officers, 
replaced by a 

sentence referring the 
reader to the 
Constitution. 

Removes risk of 

inadvertent conflict 
with the Constitution.  

Clearer that the 
Constitution is the 
overriding source of 

delegations. 

Appendix C – Annex 

B 

Removal of reference 

to Investment 
Property Group, 

replaced with 
Statutory Officers 
Group. 

Obsolete term. 

Appendix D – 
Paragraph 1.5 

Remove reference to 
‘audited’ accounts. 

Whilst accounts 
should be audited, the 

current backlog (part 
of a nationwide 

backlog) means that 
the prior year 
accounts are not yet 

audited. 

Appendix D –  

Section 2 and  
Annex 2 

Arlingclose 

Commentary – 
replaced by latest 

version. 

Annual Refresh. 

Appendix D – 

Paragraph 4.1 

Clarity that “the 

Council does not 
borrow to invest for 
the primary purpose 

of financial return and 
therefore retains full 

access to the Public 
Works Loans Board.” 

Clarity of strategy. 

Appendix D – 
Paragraph 4.8 

Further clarity that 
the Council must not 
borrow primarily for 

financial return. 

Clarity of strategy / 
external regulation. 

Appendix D – 

Paragraph 4.9 

Removal of reference 

to PFI. 

No longer relevant. 

Page 18



Reference Change Rationale 

Appendix D – 
Paragraph 5.2 

Inclusion of text: 
“Existing investments 

will be reviewed on a 
regular basis for 
appropriateness of 

size, length of 
investment and 

counterparty, 
referring to the 
Government’s policy 

on statutory overrides 
and the current 

performance of each 
investment.”  

Commitment to keep 
current portfolio under 

review. 

Appendix D – 
Paragraph 5.5 
(beneath Table 3) 

Increased Money 
Market Fund Limits 
from £4m to £5m 

To provide additional 
flexibility to manage 
very short-term high 

cash balances and 
avoid excessive 

balances in the 
current account. 

Appendix D – 5.21  Interest Rate 
Exposure 

Modifying table to 
provide a more 
understandable limit. 

 
The above changes do not represent a fundamental change in strategy, 

but are aimed to clarify governance arrangements and/or wording, 
make clearer the need for Member involvement and strengthen the 

commitment not to borrow primarily for financial return. 
 

Key implications 

 

Comments of the Chief Finance Officer 

1 The financial and risk implications are set out in detail within the 

attached Strategy and supporting Annexes. 

 

Comments of the Head of Legal Services 

2 There are no legal implications resulting from the recommendations in 

this report. The Council is required to approve a Capital, Investment and 
Treasury Management Strategy each financial year. 

 

 

Page 19



Equality 

3 The recommendations within this report do not have the potential to 
disadvantage or discriminate against any different groups with protected 
characteristics in the community. 

 

Climate change 

4 There are no significant environmental / sustainability implications 
associated with this report. It is however recognised that some Council 
investments may be in companies that are considered to have a 

detrimental impact on the climate, such as oil companies. 
 

Appendices 

Appendix 1 – Capital, Investment and Treasury Management Strategy 2024/25 

and supporting Annexes. 

 

Background papers 

Refer to 2024/25 Draft Budget and Medium-Term Financial Strategy. 

 
---------- end of report ---------- 

Page 20



  

APPENDIX 1           

 

Capital, Investment and Treasury Management Strategy 2024/25 

1. Introduction 
 

1.1 The Capital, Investment and Treasury Management Strategy (the strategy) provides an 

overview of the three main components of capital planning;  

• Capital expenditure and investments: the Capital Programme; supporting the Council’s 

priorities and the Investment Property Strategy; generating income and supporting 

economic growth and regeneration; 

• Financing our capital plans, and maintaining liquidity: the Treasury Management 

Strategy; setting out how the capital programme will be financed and how cash 

investments will be managed; and 

• Repaying our debt in a prudent way: the Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP) Policy; 

setting out how we use the revenue budget to repay debt. 

 

This report sets out a high-level overview of how capital expenditure, capital financing and 

treasury management activity contributes to the provision of services along with an overview 

of how associated risk is managed and the implications for future financial sustainability.   

1.2 The strategy sets out a clear picture of the plans of the Council for financing capital 

expenditure, and investment plans within the financial constraints, risk appetite and 

regulatory framework that the Council operates. 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 21



  

1.3 The strategy can be broken down into separate key elements that set out the Council’s 

approach to capital, investment and treasury management: 

 

• Capital Overview - asset management, capital expenditure planning, risk management 

and long-term sustainability of capital expenditure plans (Section 2) 

• Investment Overview – setting out investment plans focusing on the approach to service 

and commercially led investment (Section 3);   

• The Treasury Management Strategy Statement (TMSS) – setting out how we borrow 

and invest to support our capital financing requirement (Section 4) 

• The Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP) Policy – setting out how we repay capital 

borrowing (Included as Appendix A). 

 

1.4 Decisions made this year on capital, investment and treasury management will have financial 

consequences for the Council for many years into the future. They are therefore subject to 

both a national regulatory framework and to local policy framework, summarised in this 

report. 

 

1.5 The strategy will: 

• Set out how we ensure that capital expenditure contributes to the achievement of 

corporate priorities; 

• Explain how the Capital Programme is financed and demonstrates that it is affordable and 

sustainable; 

• Explains the Council’s approach to investments; and; 

• Set out and fulfil the Council’s regulatory requirements in respect of Borrowing, Treasury 

Management and Investment. 

 

2 Capital Overview  

 

Capital Expenditure and Financing: 

2.1 The Council’s intention in relation to capital investment is to ensure it can make a real and 

demonstrable impact on the economy and infrastructure of Tandridge by: 

• Investing in the District, by attracting and securing significant amounts of external 

investment to supplement Council resources and deliver an enhanced district-wide 

infrastructure offer, and; 

• Prioritising regeneration investment to develop the local economy, infrastructure and 

housing and to support job creation and promote local employment within the District. 

2.2 The Council’s capital expenditure and financing plans over the medium-term include an 

overview of the governance arrangements for approval and monitoring of expenditure and, in 

relation to commercial investment activities, sets out the due diligence process and the 

Council’s risk appetite in respect of these, including proportionality in respect of overall 

resources. 

 

Page 22



  

2.3 The section includes a projection of the Council’s capital financing requirement and how this 

will be funded and repaid.  It links to the Council’s borrowing plans and sets out the Council’s 

statutory duty to make an annual revenue provision for the repayment of debt, detailed in the 

MRP Policy. 

Capital Expenditure 

 

2.4 Capital expenditure refers to Local Authority spending on assets such as infrastructure, 

property or vehicles that will be used for more than one year. In Local Government this 

includes spending on assets owned by other bodies and loans and grants to other bodies, 

enabling them to buy assets.  

 

2.5 In the 2024/25 Budget and 3-year Capital Programme to 2026/27, the Council has a total 

capital expenditure requirement of £74.8m (2024/25 - 2026/27) as summarised in Table 1.   

 

Table 1 - Estimates of Capital Expenditure 

 2022/23 

Actual 

£m 

2023/24  

Estimate 

£m  

2024/25 

Budget 

£m 

2025/26 

Budget 

£m 

2026/27 

Budget 

£m 

Total 

2024/25 

to 

2026/27 

£m 

General Fund 

services 

4.8 3.2 4.7 1.8 1.4 7.9 

Community 

Infrastructure Levy 

(CIL) Funded  

0.0 0.5 1.6 1.2 2.9 5.6 

Council Housing 

(HRA) 

11.5 16.1 19.1 26.2 16.0 61.3 

TOTAL 16.4 19.8 25.5 29.1 20.2 74.8 

 

2.6 Our medium-term approach to financial planning means we can commit to a Capital 

Programme of c£75m over the next 3 years.  The revenue implications of this proposed 

programme are integrated and factored into the financial planning over the Medium-Term 

Financial Strategy (MTFS) period. 

 

2.7 In developing the capital expenditure estimates, we have ensured that borrowing costs remain 

in line with the revenue budget envelopes set out in the 2024/25 Budget and MTFS.   

 

 

 

 

Page 23



  

2.8 The main General Fund capital projects include the regeneration of Croydon Road streetscape 

(£2.3m), Disabled Facilities Grant (£1.1m), delivery of the Council’s Open Spaces Strategy from 

the UK Shared Prosperity Fund (£0.8m), IT Hardware and Infrastructure Projects (£0.6m), 

Garden waste, recycling, food waste and refuse bins (£0.4m), public conveniences (£0.3m), 

Children’s Playground improvements (£0.3m) and Parks, Pavilions and Open spaces (£0.2m). 

The Council also plans a further £0.2m of capital expenditure on the refurbishment of 

Quadrant House as part of the Council’s economic development plans. 

 

2.9 The Housing Revenue Account (HRA) is a ring-fenced account which ensures that Council 

Housing does not subsidise, or is itself subsidised, by other local services. HRA capital 

expenditure is therefore recorded separately. 

 

2.10 The Council has specific arrangements for the management of capital expenditure to ensure 

they are aligned with the Council’s priorities. The principles for governance of the capital 

programme are detailed in Appendix B. The separate approval process for the acquisition of 

investments in property is contained within the Investment Property Strategy (Appendix C). 

 

2.11 Fundamentally, they are approved on the principles of value for money, affordability and 

deliverability. Projects need to demonstrate value for money and that they are capable of 

being delivered within expected timescales.  

 

Capital Funding 

2.12 All capital expenditure must be financed, either from external sources (government grants and 

other contributions), the Council’s own resources (revenue, reserves and capital receipts) or 

debt (borrowing). The planned financing of the above expenditure is as follows: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 24



  

Table 2 - Capital Financing 

 2022/23 

Actual  

£m 

2023/24 

Estimate 

£m 

2024/25 

Budget 

£m 

2025/26 

Budget 

£m 

2026/27 

Budget 

£m 

Total 

2024/25 to 

2026/27 £m 

General Fund       

Grants & 

contributions 

3.0 0.8 3.1 0.8 0.4 4.3 

CIL 0.0 0.5 1.6 1.2 2.9 5.6 

Internal resources 0.8 0.4 0 0 0 0 

Borrowing 1.0 2.0 1.7 1.0 1.0 3.6 

Total General Fund 

and CIL 

4.9 3.7 6.3 2.9 4.2 13.5 

HRA       

Grants & 

contributions 

0.0 3.2 3.6 4.9 0.9 9.5 

Internal resources 11.2 8.3 7.9 7.9 7.9 23.7 

Borrowing 0.4 4.7 7.6 13.3 7.2 28.1 

Total HRA 11.5 16.1 19.1 26.2 16.0 61.3 

TOTAL 16.4 19.8 25.5 29.1 20.2 74.8 

 

2.13 Borrowing is only a temporary source of finance, since loans and leases must be repaid, and 

this is therefore replaced over time by other financing, usually from revenue which is known 

as Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP). No MRP is charged in respect of assets held within the 

Housing Revenue Account – this is a feature of the HRA accounting rather than a choice by the 

Council. 

 

2.14 Alternatively, proceeds from selling capital assets (known as capital receipts) may currently be 

used to replace debt finance. No use of receipts is currently assumed to repay existing debt. 

 

2.15 Planned MRP is set out in the following table: 

Table 3 - Repayment of Debt through Minimum Revenue Provision 

 2022/23 

Actual 

£m 

2023/24 

Estimate 

£m 

2024/25 

Budget 

£m 

2025/26 

Budget 

£m 

2026/27 

Budget 

£m 

Minimum Revenue 

Provision 

1.2 1.2 1.1 1.3 1.5 

 

Page 25



  

2.16 The Council’s cumulative underlying requirement for debt finance is measured by the Capital 

Financing Requirement (CFR). This increases with new debt-financed capital expenditure on 

service delivery and on investments and reduces with MRP and capital receipts used to replace 

debt.  

 

2.17 The CFR is expected to increase by £11.7m during 2024/25. Based on the above figures for 

expenditure and financing, the Council’s estimated CFR is as follows: 

Table 4 - Prudential Indicator: Estimates of Capital Financing Requirement 

 31/03/2023 

Actual  

£m 

31/03/2024 

Estimate 

£m 

31/03/2025 

Estimate 

£m 

31/03/2026 

Estimate 

£m 

31/03/2027 

Estimate 

£m 

General Fund 

services 

25.9 26.8 27.5 27.3 27.0 

Council housing 

(HRA) 

61.7 66.4 74.0 87.3 94.5 

Commercial 

activities/non- 

financial 

investments* 

21.0 20.8 20.6 20.4 20.2 

TOTAL CFR 108.5 114.0 122.1 135.0 141.7 

* Commercial activities/non-financial investments relate to areas such as capital expenditure on 
investment properties, loans to third parties etc. 

2.18 Our capital plans lead to an increase in the estimated CFR of £27.7m over the three-year 

period.  The General Fund and Commercial CFR falls by £0.4m with the HRA CFR increasing by 

£28.1m. The revenue implications of this are set out below and the TMSS (Appendix D, section 

6). 

 

2.19 Asset management and disposals: The Council does not currently have a land disposal 

programme for the General Fund, although it is in the process of reviewing all of its assets to 

determine whether they should be retained, and, if so, for the optimum use. The current policy 

is to use any surplus land and property which is identified for housing purposes where feasible. 

If it is not feasible then general fund capital receipts will be realised. When a capital asset is 

no longer needed, it may be sold so that the proceeds, known as capital receipts, can be spent 

on new assets or to repay debt. Repayment of capital grants, loans and investment also 

generate capital receipts. The Council is also permitted to spend capital receipts “flexibly” on 

service transformation projects  . In 2023/24, the Council plans to use £0.5m of capital receipts 

flexibly for planning and finance transformation purposes. There are plans to utilise receipts 

further in 2024/25 and 2025/26.  

 

2.20 The Council plans to receive £2.1m of capital receipts in 2024/25. Expectations for future years 

are set out in the table below: 

Page 26



  

Table 5 - Capital Receipts Receivable 

 2022/23 

Actual  

£m 

2023/24 

Estimate 

£m 

2024/25 

Estimate 

£m 

2025/26 

Estimate 

£m 

2026/27 

Estimate 

£m 

HRA Disposals 0.6 1.8 1.8 1.8 1.8 

GF Disposals* 1.4 0 0 0 0 

Loans repaid 0.3 0.3 0.3 0 0 

TOTAL 2.3 2.1 2.1 1.8 1.8 

Revenue Budget Implications 

 

2.21 Although capital expenditure is not charged directly to the revenue budget, interest payable 

on loans and MRP are charged to revenue, offset by any investment income receivable. This is 

referred to as net financing costs.  

 

2.22 Current projections show that the net financing cost will be contained within budget 

projections over the MTFS, rising from £0.2m net in 2024/25 to £0.6m net in 2026/27. The net 

costs of financing our capital plans are set out in the table below.   

Table 6 – Net Finance Cost Budget 

 2022/23 

Actual 

£m 

2023/24 

Estimate 

£m 

2024/25 

Estimate 

£m 

2025/26 

Estimate 

£m 

2026/27 

Estimate 

£m 

MRP 1.2 1.2 1.1 1.3 1.5 

Interest Payable (GF) 1.1 1.2 1.3 1.4 1.4 

Investment Income 

and property income 

(2.2) (2.3) (2.3) (2.3) (2.3) 

Net Finance Cost 0.1 0.2 0.2 0.4 0.6 

 

2.23 The proportion of net finance cost to net revenue budget is a key indicator of direction of 

travel relative to medium term revenue resources and provides insight into the affordability 

of finance costs (see TMSS Appendix D, Annex 1, Table 2). 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 27



  

Financial Sustainability 

 

2.24 Due to the very long-term nature of capital expenditure and financing, the revenue budget 

implications of expenditure incurred over the MTFS will extend for up to 50 years into the 

future. The Section 151 Officer is satisfied that the proposed Capital Programme is prudent, 

affordable and sustainable because it remains proportional to the Council’s overall revenue 

budget.  

3 Investment Overview 
 

3.1 In addition to service-led capital expenditure, the Council has invested its money for a further 

two broad purposes: 

• To support local public services by setting up, lending to or buying shares in other 

organisations (service investments) such as to its Leisure Service Provider and in its 

Property subsidiary, Gryllus Property Ltd, to generate revenue income; 

• As a result of surplus cash from its day-to day activities, for example when income is 

received in advance of expenditure (known as treasury management investments) 

This investment strategy meets the requirements of the statutory guidance issued by the 

Government in January 2018. The statutory guidance defines investments as “all of the 

financial assets of a local authority as well as other non-financial assets that the organisation 

holds primarily or partially to generate a profit; for example, investment property portfolios.” 

The Council interprets this to exclude (a) trade receivables which meet the accounting 

definition of financial assets but are not investments in the everyday sense of the word and 

(b) property held partially to generate a profit but primarily for the provision of local public 

services. This aligns the Council’s definition of an investment with that in the 2021 edition of 

the CIPFA Prudential Code. 

Service and Property Investments: Loans 

 

3.2 Overview: The Council invests money in its subsidiary, Gryllus Property Limited and other 

organisations to support local public services and stimulate local economic growth, for 

example Freedom Leisure.   

 

3.3 Security: The main risk when making service loans is that the borrower will be unable to repay 

the principal lent and/or the interest due.  In order to limit this risk and ensure that total 

exposure to service loans remains prudent, decisions on service loans are made in the context 

of their value, the stability of the counterparty and an assessment of the risk of default. The 

current value of service loans is set out as follows: 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 28



  

Table 7 - Loans 

Category of 

borrower 

31.3.2023 actual 

Balance 

owing 

Loss 

allowance 

Net figure in 

accounts 

Subsidiaries 15.1 0 15.1 

Suppliers 0.6 0.1 0.5 

TOTAL 15.7 0.1 15.6 

 

3.4 The strategy does not propose an approved limit for these investments since any increase 

should be subject to further Member approval. 

 

3.5 Accounting standards require the Council to set aside loss allowance for loans, reflecting the 

likelihood of non-payment.  The figures for loans in the Council’s Statement of Accounts are 

shown net of this loss allowance. However, the Council makes every reasonable effort to 

collect the full sum advanced and has appropriate credit control arrangements in place to 

recover overdue repayments.  In the case of our service loans, these allowances are £0.1m. 

 

3.6 Risk assessment: The Council assesses the risk of loss before entering into and whilst holding 

service loans by reference to their financial position, past experience and other factors.  We 

wholly own our subsidiaries for service purposes and so their financial position is subject to 

the same rigour and control as that of the Council. 

 

Service and Property Investments: Shares 

 

3.7 Security: One of the risks of investing in shares is that they fall in value meaning that the initial 

outlay may not be recovered. To limit this risk, upper limits on the sum invested in each 

category of shares have been set as follows: 

Table 8 – Shares held for service purposes 

Category of company 31.3.2023 actual 

Amounts 

invested 

£m 

Gains or 

losses £m 

Value in 

accounts £m 

Subsidiaries 5.3 0 5.3 

TOTAL 5.3 0 5.3 

 

3.8 The strategy does not propose an approved limit for these investments since any increase 

should be subject to further Member approval. 

 

Page 29



  

3.9 Risk Assessment: The investment in shares totalling £5.3m is within the Council’s subsidiary 

Gryllus Property Limited. The Authority assesses the risk of loss before entering into and whilst 

holding shares by assessing the current and future return achievable and the level of security 

provided by the assets of the company, and the level of control which the Council can exert 

over the strategy of the company. The Council has created an Income Equalisation Reserve, 

with a current balance of c£0.4m to finance any diminution in value and income volatility. The 

Income Equalisations Reserves will help mitigate the risk of any loss of income from the 

Council’s investments allowing time to formulate plans to address any longer-term reductions 

in income. 

 

3.10 Liquidity: The funding of long-term investments in the Council’s subsidiary are financed by 

fixed long term borrowing, so that there is no short or medium-term risk to the liquidity of the 

Council, which would require the Council to be forced to liquidate its assets in the company. 

 

3.11 Non-specified Investments: Shares are the only investment type that the Authority has 

identified that meets the definition of a non-specified investment in the government guidance. 

The limits above on share investments are therefore also the Authority’s upper limits on non-

specified investments. The Authority has not adopted any procedures for determining further 

categories of non-specified investment since none are likely to meet the definition. 

 

3.12 Governance: Decisions on service investments are agreed by Management Team, led by the 

Chief Executive in consultation with the Director of Resources and must meet the criteria and 

limits laid down in the Investment Property Strategy. Loans and shares are capital expenditure 

and their purchase will therefore also be approved by Members as part of the capital 

programme.  

Property Investments 

 

3.13 Overview: The Council holds investments in local commercial property; office space and 

leisure, with the intention of supporting Tandridge’s economy and generating a surplus that 

will be spent on local public services.  The table below shows the value of our investments by 

main category, including those under construction where the ultimate use is to be determined.  

Table 9 – General Fund Property held for socio economic and/or development purposes 

Property Type Actual 31/03/2023 Actual 

Purchase 

cost 

£m 

Gains or 

(losses) 

£m 

Value in 

accounts 

£m 

Offices 20.0 (3.8) 16.2 

Leisure 0.9 0.1 1.0 

TOTAL 20.9 (3.7) 17.2 

 

Page 30



  

3.14 Security: In accordance with government guidance, the Council considers a property 

investment to be secure if its accounting valuation is at or higher than its purchase cost 

including taxes and transaction costs. 

 

3.15 A fair value assessment of the Council’s investment property portfolio has been made within 

the past twelve months, and the underlying assets provide security for capital investment.  The 

Council holds these properties for socio economic and/or development purposes, short-term 

fluctuation in investment values can be expected. Should the 2023/24 year-end Accounts 

preparation and audit process value these properties below their purchase cost, we will take 

mitigating actions to protect the capital invested, such as exploring alternate uses where 

appropriate, in consultation with Committee. 

Proportionality  

3.16 The Council’s revenue budget includes an element of profit generating investment activity to 

support services.  The table below shows the extent to which the expenditure planned to meet 

the service delivery objectives and/or place making role of the Council is dependent on 

achieving the expected net profit from investments over the lifecycle of the MTFS.  Investment 

activity is forecast to remain at approximately 6% of the Council’s net revenue stream over the 

medium-term.  Should we fail to achieve the expected net profit, the Council would manage 

the impact on budget through use of the income equalisation reserve in the current financial 

year and a re-assessment of efficiency plans for the remainder of the medium-term. 

 

Table 10: Proportionality of Investments 

 2022/23 

Actual   

£m 

2023/24 

Estimate 

£m 

2024/25 

Estimate 

£m 

2025/26 

Estimate 

£m 

2026/27 

Estimate 

£m 

Net Revenue Stream (£m) 11.4 11.9 12.8 12.8 12.4 

Investment rental income (£m) 0.7 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 

Proportion (%) 6% 7% 6% 6% 6% 

 

Investment Indicators 

 

3.17 The Council has set the following quantitative indicators to allow elected members and the 

public to assess the Council’s total risk exposure as a result of its investment decisions. 

 

3.18 Total risk exposure: The first indicator shows the Council’s total exposure to potential 

investment losses. This would include amounts the Council is contractually committed to lend 

but have yet to be drawn down and guarantees the Council has issued over third-party loans.  

No such commitments exist. 

 

 

 

Page 31



  

Table 11: Total investment exposure 

Total investment exposure 31/03/2023 

Actual 

 £m 

31/03/2024 

Estimate 

£m 

31/03/2025 

Estimate 

£m 

Treasury management 

investments 

16.8 22.0 12.1 

Service investments: loans 15.7 15.4 15.1 

Service investments: shares 1.0 1.0 1.0 

Commercial investments: 

Property  

17.2 17.2 17.2 

TOTAL INVESTMENTS 68.3 60.8 50.6 

 

3.19 How investments are funded: Government guidance is that these indicators should include 

how investments are funded. Councils, including TDC, do not generally associate borrowing 

with individual assets, since we borrow as required to fund the whole portfolio of capital 

spend.  However, the following investments could be described as being funded from capital 

sources, including borrowing and receipts.  The remainder of the Council’s investments are 

funded by Usable Reserves and income received in advance of expenditure. 

 

Table 12: Investments funded by borrowing 

Investments funded by 

borrowing 

31/03/2023 

Actual 

 £m 

31/03/2024 

Estimate 

£m 

31/03/2025 

Estimate 

£m 

Service investments: loans 15.7 15.4 15.1 

Service investments: shares 1.0 1.0 1.0 

Commercial investments: 

Property 

17.2 17.2 17.2 

TOTAL FUNDED BY 

BORROWING 

33.9 33.6 33.3 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 32



  

3.20 Rate of return received: This indicator shows the investment income received as a proportion 

of the sum initially invested. Note that due to the complex local government accounting 

framework, not all recorded gains and losses affect the revenue account in the year they are 

incurred. 

Investments net rate of 

return 

2022/23 

Actual 

 £m 

2023/24 

Estimate 

£m 

2024/25 

Estimate 

£m 

2023/24 

Estimate  

% 

Treasury management 

investments 

1.0 1.0 1.0 5% 

Service investments: loans 1.0 1.0 0.9 6% 

Service investments: shares 0 0 0 0 

Commercial investments: 

Property 

0.5 0.7 0.7 4% 

ALL INVESTMENTS 2.5 2.7 2.6  

 

4. Treasury Management Strategy Statement 2024/25 

 

4.1 The treasury management function ensures that the Council’s cash is organised in 

accordance with the relevant professional codes, so that sufficient cash is available to meet 

service activity. This involves both the organisation of the cash flow and, where capital plans 

require, the organisation of appropriate borrowing facilities. 

 

4.2 Treasury risk management at the Authority is conducted within the framework of the 

Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy’s Treasury Management in the Public 

Services: Code of Practice 2021 Edition (the CIPFA Code) which requires the Authority to 

approve a treasury management strategy before the start of each financial year. This report 

fulfils the Authority’s legal obligation under the Local Government Act 2003 to have regard 

to the CIPFA Code. 

 

4.3 The Council’s Treasury Management Strategy Statement and associated annexes can be 

found at Appendix D. 

Page 33



This page is intentionally left blank



  

APPENDIX A 

Annual Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP) Policy Statement 2024/25 

 

Where the Council finances capital expenditure by debt, it must put aside resources to repay that 
debt in later years.  The amount charged to the revenue budget for the repayment of debt is 
known as Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP), although there has been no statutory minimum 
since 2008. The Local Government Act 2003 requires the Council to have regard to guidance issued 
by the Department for Levelling Up, Housing and Communities (DLUHC) on Minimum Revenue 
Provision, most recently issued in 2018. 
 
The broad aim of the DLUHC Guidance is to ensure that debt is repaid over a period that is either 
reasonably commensurate with that over which the capital expenditure provides benefits, or, in 
the case of borrowing supported by revenue grant, reasonably commensurate with the period 
implicit in the determination of that grant. 
 
DLUHC regulations have been issued which require the Full Council to approve an Annual MRP 
Statement in advance of each year. A variety of options for the calculation of MRP are provided to 
councils, so long as there is a prudent provision. 
 
General Fund Capital expenditure incurred during 2024/25 will be fully subject to a MRP charge 
from 2025/26 onwards, or in the financial year after the asset becomes operational. 
 
For all General Fund unsupported borrowing, MRP will be calculated using the Asset Life – Annuity 
Method, as the principal repayment on an annuity starting in the year after the asset becomes 
operational. 
 
No MRP will be charged in respect of assets held within the Housing Revenue Account. This is in 
accordance with proper accounting practice where the HRA is instead charged for depreciation of 
assets. 

The policy remains unchanged from 2023/24. 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 35



This page is intentionally left blank



  

 
 

APPENDIX B 
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 
 
Extended Management Team 
 
Extended Management Team (EMT), which comprises the Heads of each Service led by the Chief 
Executive, is the officer body for Capital Investment development and planning and is charged with 
bringing forward funded capital expenditure plans for approval by the Strategy and Resources 
Committee. The Committee considers capital expenditure and funding plans, monitors 
performance through a series of regular capital monitoring reports and recommends the annual 
Capital Programme to Council for approval. 
 
All capital investment will be commissioned on the recommendation of the EMT which will enable 
any expenditure and its funding to be aligned with the Council’s Capital Priorities and funding 
sources.  
 
Approval of Capital Investment 
 
Fundamentally, capital projects are approved on the principles of strategic fit, value for money, 
affordability and deliverability. Projects need to demonstrate value for money and that they are 
capable of being delivered within expected timescales. 
 
All capital expenditure must be financed, either from external sources (government grants and 
other contributions), the Council’s own resources (revenue, reserves and capital receipts) or debt 
(largely borrowing and leasing) 
 
Within the Council, a concept for a potential capital project will originate from, or at least be 
‘owned’ by the Head of Service. The ‘owner’ should prepare or direct the preparation of a Strategic 
Business Case (SBC) for the proposed project. The Strategic Business Case outlining the initial idea 
or ‘concept’ for a project should be submitted to EMT for consideration.  
 
If EMT is satisfied that the proposal meets investment criteria, it will be given approval to progress 
to Stage 2 of the process – the completion of an Outline Business Case (OBC). 
 
The OBC builds on the SBC providing more detailed information including the benefits that could be 
realised focusing on the links to the Council’s Capital Investment Priorities and the proposed 
outcomes and may include several options to deliver the proposed benefits. The OBC will be 
submitted to the EMT for consideration, and if it is satisfied with the proposal will give guidance for 
the development of a preferred option. 
  
Stage 3 of the process entails the completion of a Final Business Case (FBC) which will then be 
submitted to EMT for final consideration. Again, building on the OBC, the FBC will contain evidence 
of a:  
 

• Full option appraisal; 
 

• Detailed financial analysis of all costs/income including how the project is financially 
sustainable and that any adverse revenue implications can be dealt with within existing 
budgets; 
 

Page 37



  

• Robust delivery plan including how the chosen option delivers the highest impact in 
achieving the required outcomes with identified key project milestones enabling progress 
review. Included within the delivery plan should be proposed consultation arrangements, 
value for money assessment equality and environmental impact assessments; 
 

• Risk assessment and that appropriate actions to negate these risks have been identified; 
 

• Full exit strategy where the project involves a disposal; and 
 

• Method of procurement that represents value for money.  
 
Depending on the circumstances of the bid for resources, EMT has the discretion to vary the three-
stage review process and omit one or more of the stages. Once Final Business Cases have been 
agreed, these bids will be prioritised against agreed criteria. The business case will be subject to 
peer review. 

The results of this process will be presented to Members for approval each year as part of the 
capital budget setting process, or during the year if projects come forward outside the normal 
timeframe. 

Service Challenge & Review, Efficient Use of Assets 
  
With regard to the review of operational assets, the Asset Management Team and services 
continue to work closely with service managers alongside wider public and third sector partners to 
ensure that portfolios are best fit for purpose and efficient usage is maximised.  
  
The Chief Executive and EMT will oversee any acquisition and disposal of land and property assets 
and monitors the progress of any corporate disposals and performance of the investment portfolio. 

In terms of acquisition of property there is a specific process for this under Financial Regulation 17 
to enable proposals to progress in year, with appropriate Member approval. Details of this are set 
out in the Investment Property Strategy. 

Performance Monitoring of Capital Programme  
 
The capital expenditure investment approach above is supported by a strong programme 
management process to ensure a coordinated corporate approach. This will ensure that 
investments are planned, managed and delivered prudently.  
 
EMT has a remit to review the financial performance of the capital programme and it receives a 
monthly monitoring report. In addition, financial monitoring reports will be considered by Service 
Committees periodically throughout the year, together with a capital outturn report. Issues that 
have been considered and agreed at EMT can be reported to Service Committees as necessary via 
the regular financial monitoring reports. 
 
Budget managers are responsible for monitoring expenditure throughout the financial year and 
provide forecasts against budget, commentary on variances and an assessment of deliverability and 
risk as part of the monthly capital monitoring process. Finance support budget holders to provide 
robust information that can be relied upon to take actions to mitigate overspends and make best 
use of Council resources to deliver intended outcomes. 
 

Page 38



  

The undertaking of the detailed annual review of the capital programme provides the opportunity 
to review all schemes or focus on specific areas of concern.  
 
Where a potential cost overrun has been identified, EMT will explore possible solutions in detail. It 
will also consider any underspending or identified surplus resources which can be added to the 
central pool of resources. EMT may also suggest a reallocation of resources to other projects. 
  
Where there is a delay in the commitment of programme/project resources, the EMT will require 
project managers to report the reasons for the delay and consider whether it would be appropriate 
to recommend the decommissioning of the project and the reallocation of un-ring-fenced 
resources to other projects.  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

           

 

 

Page 39



This page is intentionally left blank



  

       

APPENDIX C 

INVESTMENT PROPERTY STRATEGY 2024/25    

Introduction  

1. The Investment Property Strategy forms part of the Council’s overall Capital Investment & 

Treasury Management Strategy and is included with the performance monitoring and reporting 

procedures.   

 

2. The returns from property investment will contribute positively towards the achievement of 

savings targets and budgets to enable the continued delivery and investment in key frontline 

services and/or the bolstering of financial reserves whilst achieving a balanced budget. 

 

3. The Investment Property Strategy aims to provide a robust and viable framework for the 

acquisition of property towards the pursuance of redevelopment and regeneration 

opportunities that can deliver positive returns and significant benefits to our residents, 

businesses and communities.  

 

4. The strategy is to set out how the Investment Property Portfolio will be managed and covers 

the following matters: 

 

• Objectives and strategic priorities for Investment Property;  

• Governance and performance reporting arrangements;  

• Risks;  

• Portfolio Mix; 

• Funding, Performance monitoring and Financial Indicators for Investment; Property 

• Investment evaluation criteria; 

• Acquisition procedure; and 

• Disposal Procedure 

 

Background 

5. The Local Government Act 2003 (the Act) and supporting regulations requires the Council to 

have regard to the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) Prudential 

Code and MHCLG Investment Guidance (the Guidance) to ensure that the Council’s capital 

investment plans are affordable, prudent and sustainable. 

 

6. The Local Government Act 1972 – Section 120 of the Local Government Act 1972 empowers 

local authorities to acquire by agreement “any land whether situated inside or outside their 

area for the purpose of any of their functions under this or any other enactment, or for the 

benefit, improvement or development of their area”. 

 

Page 41



  

7. The Localism Act 2011 – Part 1, Section 1 of the Localism Act 2011. Local Authorities are 

allowed to confer powers for a commercial purpose or for the benefit of the Authority, its area 

or residents.   

Government Guidance 

8. In February 2018 the Secretary of State issued new guidance on Local Government Investments 

(the Guidance) which widened the definition of an investment to include all the financial assets 

of a Local Authority as well as non-financial assets held primarily or partially to generate a 

profit.  

 

9. The Guidance requires the Investment Property Strategy to be approved by Full Council on an 

annual basis and sets out the disclosure and reporting requirements. Any mid-year material 

changes will also be subject to Full Council approval. Further CIPFA guidance issued in 

November 2019 reinforces the need for a comprehensive Investment Property Strategy.  

 

10. In November 2020 HM Treasury published their conclusions from the consultation regarding 

the use of monies lent by the Public Works Loan Board (PWLB).  “In recent years a minority of 

local authorities have borrowed substantial sums from the PWLB to buy investment property 

with the primary aim of generating yield”. 

 

11. New guidelines were introduced for PWLB borrowing which excludes local authorities from all 

future PWLB borrowing (whatever the purpose) if any projects within an Authority’s three year 

capital programme were for the primary purpose of generating yield. Losing access to PWLB 

borrowing would cause significant problems and increase costs, in particular for the funding of 

affordable housing development and essential works through the Housing Revenue Account. 

Other sources of finance are unlikely to be at such competitive levels. 

 

12. The latest edition of the Prudential Code for Capital Finance was released in December 2021. 

The main elements of the Code in relation to commercial property are as follows.  

 

The Prudential Code determines that certain acts or practices are not prudent activity for a 

Local Authority and incur risk to the affordability of Local Authority investment:  

 

• An authority must not borrow to invest primarily for financial return; 

 

• It is not prudent for Local Authorities to make any investment or spending decision that 

will increase the capital financing requirement, and so may lead to new borrowing, 

unless directly and primarily related to the functions of the authority and where any 

financial returns are either related to the financial viability of the project in question or 

otherwise incidental to the primary purpose. 

 

 

 

 

Page 42



  

• The UK Government’s rules for access to PWLB lending at the date of this publication 

require statutory Chief Finance Officers to certify that their Local Authority’s capital 

spending plans do not include the acquisition of assets primarily for yield, reflecting a 

view that Local Authority borrowing papers are granted to finance direct investment in 

local service delivery (including housing, regeneration and local infrastructure) and for 

cash flow management, rather than to add debt leverage to return-seeking investment 

activity.   

Since access to the PWLB is important to ensure Local Authorities’ liquidity in the long term, 

and leveraged investment always increases downside risks, local authorities must not borrow 

to fund acquisitions where obtaining financial returns is the primary aim.  Authorities with 

existing commercial investments (including property) are not required by this Code to 

immediately sell these investments.  However, Authorities which have an expected need to 

borrow should review options for exiting financial investments for commercial purposes in 

their annual treasury management or investment strategies.  The options should include using 

the sale proceeds to repay debt or reduce new borrowing requirements.  They should not take 

new borrowing if financial investments for commercial purposes can reasonably be realised 

instead, based on a financial appraisal which takes account of financial implications and risk 

reduction benefits.  Authorities with commercial property may also invest in the repair, 

renewal and update of their existing commercial properties.   

 

Objectives and Strategic priorities for the Property Investment Portfolio 

 

13. The objective of the Investment Property Strategy is to establish a framework for the 

identification of property investments which, if acquired, would either provide economic, social 

and environmental benefits to residents and businesses and/or development opportunities for 

the District.  

 

14. The Council has moved away from acquisitions of commercial property for yield. Nevertheless, 

the Investment Evaluation Criteria (Annexe A) and the Acquisition and Disposal Procedure 

(Annexe B) remain applicable as they cover good practice of all property purchase 

circumstances.   

 

15. In delivering the strategy over the next year the following main priorities are to be used to 

guide the growth of the investment property portfolio: 

 

a) A major driver for acquisition of new investment property will be economic benefit for 

the residents of the Council either through protection of commercial space or 

employment generation/protection.  

b) Properties that have a development potential will also be considered for their long-

term benefits.  

 

Investments will be mainly focused within the District boundary. It is not considered that there 

will be many opportunities for properties outside the District over the next three years of the 

Strategy which will align with the Council’s priorities 

 

Page 43



  

 

16. Investment relating to the Strategy will be directed towards:- 

Regeneration and Development Opportunities 

Investment which can facilitate/generate regeneration or economic development benefits 

as well as positive financial returns for the Council. Financial returns for the Council may 

come in the form of increased business rates or New Homes Bonus where the investment 

is within the District. 

The Contributions from Regeneration and Development Investments will include positive 

financial returns for the Council and may also include the following: 

• Regeneration benefits for the area including employment opportunities; 

• Economic benefits for the area; 

• Social value improvements e.g. place-making, public realm space, pride in one’s 

local area and surroundings; and 

• Environmental improvements e.g. demolition or refurbishment of old, inefficient 

and/or vacant/unsightly properties. 

 Economic, social and environmental benefits collectively make up the strategic value of an 

asset, and collectively, they can drive inward private investment and prosperity for an area. 

 

Governance and Performance  

 

17. The Strategy and Resources Committee will be responsible for approving the strategic priorities 

and the arrangements set out in this policy. There will be an annual report to the Committee 

that will set out performance over the previous year and plans for the next. 

 

18. Operational management, including acquisitions is to be delegated to officers acting within 

Financial Regulation 17 of the Council Constitution. 

19. The Council recognises that investing in land and properties is a specialist and potentially 
complex area. The Council will require the services of professional property, legal and financial 
advisers, where appropriate, in order to access specialist skills and resources to inform the 
decision-making process associated with the strategy. 

 
20. The lead officer for Asset Management shall lead on potential purchases and development 

opportunities that meet the pre-determined selection criteria contained within the strategy. 

The criteria to evaluate potential acquisitions is attached as Annexe A. The Asset Management 

team will identify opportunities based on the selection criteria, will co-ordinate all necessary 

due diligence in accordance with the Acquisition Procedure (Annexe B), and will present a 

business case for challenge and scrutiny to the relevant Committee or Chief Executive as 

required under Financial Regulation 17. 

 

 

 

 

Page 44



  

21. CIPFA Guidance requires that elected members and officers involved in the investment 

decision-making process have appropriate capacity, skills and information to enable them to 

take informed decisions as to whether to enter into a specific investment. In addition, it places 

a duty on the council to ensure that advisors negotiating deals on behalf of the Council are 

aware of the core principles of the prudential framework and the regulatory regime in which 

the Council operates. 

 

22. The Council recognises that it is responsible for property investment decisions at all times and 

will ensure that undue reliance is not placed upon our external service providers. 

 
23. The lead officer for Asset Management is to be accountable for the performance of the 

Investment Property Portfolio and will be charged with making recommendations to the Chief 

Executive for acquisitions. 

 

24. Disposal of Investment Property assets are to be undertaken in accordance with the Council’s 

Financial Regulations and delegated Authorities. The lead officer for Asset Management will 

make recommendations to the Strategy & Resources Committee and in accordance with officer 

delegated powers.  

 

25. The Council’s Constitution sets out delegations to Officers in respect of the acquisition and 

disposal of assets. 

Risk Assessment 

26. Property investment has its own specific risks, set out below: 

 

a) Property Risks – the property market is cyclical and is affected by the wider economic 

environment. There are also property risks that are specific to a building due to its 

location, condition and quality of the tenants. Mitigation proposed in this policy for 

these risks include diversifying the portfolio (portfolio mix) to include investments that 

perform during different cycles of the economic cycle. The evaluation criteria, diversity 

of location, due diligence tests, approval processes and accountability for 

implementation are also proposed to address property specific risks; 

 

b) Financial Risks – the primary financial risks are borrowing levels, interest rate 

movement, ongoing ability to service debts, the general investment market conditions 

and its effect on rental income. Proposals have included the creation of a fully owned 

subsidiary property investment company, Gryllus Property Ltd and a funding strategy 

that allocates debt and all associated costs to the investment property portfolio so that 

the net revenue benefits to the Council is transparent and can be benchmarked; and 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 45



  

c) Corporate Risks – effective delivery of the Strategy requires staff with the requisite 

expertise, effective arrangements for asset management and the recognition of the 

reputational risks that can come from inappropriate tenants and from legal and 

environmental breaches. In accordance with the Statement of Investment beliefs as we 

are investing public money we will be sensitive to the ethical considerations of local 

residents.   

 

27. The Council assesses the risk of loss before entering into and whilst holding property. The 

approach is laid out in Annexe A – Investment Evaluation Criteria. 

 

Liquidity 

28. Compared with other investment types, property is relatively difficult to sell and convert to 

cash at short notice and can take a considerable period to sell in certain market conditions. The 

funding of long-term investments is financed by fixed long term borrowing, so that there is no 

short or medium-term risk to the liquidity of the Council, which would require the Council to be 

forced to liquidate its asset and suffer a loss nor impact upon the Council’s provision of 

services. As these long-term investments are matched by long term borrowing, it will not be 

necessary to access the invested funds in an emergency. Investments in property are not 

undertaken unless they are secure over the medium term, have additional socio- economic 

benefits and the target rate of return significantly exceeds the annual cost of borrowing.  

 

Portfolio Mix 

 

29. The medium and long term aims of the Strategy have been adjusted following the publication 

of the HM Treasury consultation to: 

 

a) Acquire properties within the District in areas with strong sustainable economic activity 

i.e. areas with the environmental and business activities capable of providing an 

economy whereby capital and rental growth over the mid to long term was possible; 

b) When making investments the Strategy and Resources Committee will have regard to 

other economic and social benefits for the residents of Tandridge; and  

c) Achieve a balanced portfolio where after 6 (was 4) years1 no single class of property, ie 

retail, industrial, office and leisure is larger than 60% and none smaller than 10%, other 

than retail or leisure.  

 

Contribution 

 

30. The Council has previously invested in commercial property with the intention of making a 

surplus that will be spent on local services and for socio- economic benefits. The portfolio is at 

an early stage of development. 

 

 
1 Change made in 2020/21 Investment Property Strategy 

Page 46



  

31. Table 1 shows the properties currently held by Tandridge District Council for Investment 

Purposes, by type: 

 

Property by Type Value in Draft 
Accounts 31st March 
2022 

Value in Draft 
Accounts 31st March 
2023 

Offices & Mixed/other £18,090,200 £16,236,300 

Leisure £978,300 £972,800 

   

Total £19,068,500 £17,209,100 

Values taken from external annual valuations by Wilkes, Head & Eve 

 

32. Investments held under Gryllus Holdings are reported separately. 

 

33. Gross & Net Income from Investment Property 

 2022/23 Actual  2023/24 Forecast 

Gross Income £832,215 £925,074 

Net Income £689,859 £630,976 

 

Funding and Financial Performance of the portfolio 

 

34. The Council will fund investment property acquisitions by utilising the most appropriate and 

efficient funding strategy available at the time of purchase. The Council has the option of 

utilising long term prudential borrowing, capital receipts or reserves. Financing decisions will 

link to the Council’s Capital & Investment Strategy and Treasury Management Strategy. 

 

35. All new acquisitions are to achieve an appropriate positive return net of borrowing and other 

costs associated with the acquisition. Properties purchased for redevelopment, refurbishment 

or regeneration may not provide an immediate positive return. These will be assessed through 

a business case and considered by Strategy & Resources Committee 

 

36. Separate accounts are to be kept for income and expenditure in connection with investment 

property and are to be included in the annual report to the Strategy & Resources Committee. 

 

37. Key Indicators have been adopted to monitor performance of the portfolio. Performance will 

be reported against the following indicators along with a property market narrative: 

 

• Total Return – the annual increase in capital value plus income expressed as a 

percentage of the previous year’s capital value (adjusted to include purchases); 

• Effective Return – total return receivable less costs expressed as a percentage of the 

previous year’s capital value; 

• Growth in Asset Value – Percentage increase per year; 

• Income Growth – Percentage increase in gross income per year; and 

Page 47



  

• Vacancy Rate – Expressed as a percentage and number of vacant units compared with 

total number of units. This will also be expressed in terms of lost rental. Void periods 

are factored into financial appraisals as part of the assessment criteria. 

 

 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 

A) Total Return 
 

-0.017% -2.20% 0.2% 

B) Effective 
Return 

-0.02% -5.93% -3.6% 

C) Growth in 
Asset Value 

-0.05% -6.3% -3.4% 

D) Income 
Growth* 

n/a n/a -21.8% 

E) Vacancy 
Rate 

Redstone 
House is 
vacant 
pending sale. 
Quadrant 
House 
remains 33% 
vacant by 
floor area 

Redstone 
House was 
sold. 
Quadrant 
House is 31% 
by floor area 

Quadrant 
House 
vacancy was 
31% 

 

*Gross income was not reported in 2020/21 so there is not a comparator to use for 

2021/22. Net income reduced by 36.3% from 2020/21 (£746,000) to 2021/22 

(£475,429). 

 

Due to a lease renewal and associated incentive in 2022/23, rental income against the 

portfolio dropped by c.£232k.  This is expected to be recovered in 2023/24. 

 

38. In addition to property specific performance indicators are quantitative indicators that will be 

reported within the Council’s Capital & Investment Strategy and Treasury Management 

Strategy to allow Councillors and the Public to assess a local authority’s total risk exposure as a 

result of property investment decisions. 

 

39. The operating cost of the Council’s internal Strategic Asset Management Team excluding the 

Housing Development Specialists is projected to be £152k (£138k in 2022/23). The costs reflect 

the cost of managing the Council’s entire property portfolio and functions, not just the assets 

acquired under this Property Investment Strategy. Additional costs may be incurred if new 

commercial activity takes place. Any such costs will be factored into the financial appraisals as 

part of the assessment to ensure that anticipated net rates of return are achieved.   

 

 

Page 48



  

Investment Property Strategy – Annexe A  

 

Investment Evaluation Criteria 

1. As with other forms of investment at the most basic level, property investment is a trade-off 
between risk and return. A traditional well diversified property portfolio (spread across 
different property sectors and geographical areas) will deliver long-term rental and capital 
growth with relatively low risk.  

 
2. Prime property in the target region covered by this strategy will typically provide an initial 

yield of between 5 –7% with the additional prospect of capital growth leading to a higher total 
return to the Council. Equivalent /Income yields over longer periods will also be reported.  

 
3. The four main commercial property sectors will be included (industrial, office, retail and 

leisure) and in turn, these will be additionally diversified on criteria including location, the 
lease term and lot size.  This will assist in protecting the Council’s overall risk return profile 
should an individual property investment cease to be income producing (for example, it is 
undergoing refurbishment or awaiting a new tenant). Residential and mixed used sites will be 
considered using similar criteria albeit for residential investments lease terms and repairing 
obligations are likely to be very different.  Regeneration opportunities and potential 
development sites will be considered using additional criteria, including if a development 
appraisal shows strong potential or if there is strong asset management potential.   

 
4. The following Criteria are to be used to make decisions on acquiring new property investment 

properties: 

 

a. Location – Property is categorised as prime, secondary or tertiary in terms of its 

location desirability. For example, a shop located in the best trading position in the 

town would be prime, where as a unit on a peripheral neighbourhood shopping 

parade would be considered tertiary; 

b. Tenant covenant – the financial strength of a tenant determines the security of the 

property is rental income. A financially weak tenant increases the likelihood that 

the property will fall vacant. The minimum acceptable financial strength for any 

given tenant will be determined through financial appraisal of company accounts 

and the use of appropriate methods of risk assessment and credit scoring. To 

minimise management and risk, the preference will be for single occupancy 

investments wherever possible; 

c. Lease terms – the lease is to be free from unencumbered/onerous terms. The lease 

must have mechanisms for the rent to be periodically reviewed to take into 

account inflation and upward market movement; 

d. Occupational lease length – the lease term will determine the duration of the 

tenant’s contractual obligation to pay rent. The most attractive investments offer a 

long lease with a strong tenant covenant. The lease term will reflect any tenant 

break clause; 

e. Building quality – a brand-new or recently refurbished building will not usually 

require capital expenditure for at least 15 years. This is attractive for income 

investors requiring long-term rental income with a minimum of ongoing capital 

expenditure; 

Page 49



  

f. Tenure and Title anything less than a freehold acquisition will need to be 

appropriately reflected in the price. The legal title is required to be clean and free 

from any onerous conditions; 

g. Tenant repairing obligations. – Under a full repairing and insuring lease (FRI), the 

tenant is responsible for the building’s interior and exterior maintenance/repair. 

The obligation is limited to the building’s interior under an internal repairing and 

insuring lease (IRI). The preference will be to favour FRI terms (or FRI by way of 

service charge i.e. all costs relating to occupation repairs are born by the tenants 

administered through a service charge; and 

h. Lot size – to maintain portfolio balance the preference will be for no single 

property to exceed £25 million for a single let property. 

 

5. In addition, it must -   
 

a. Have passed a building and plant survey;  
b. Show a positive return after making allowance for financing costs, borrowing 

repayments and other associated costs;  
c. Be supported by an Independent RICS Red Book Valuation; and 
d. Be accompanied by a full business case report prepared by the Executive Head of 

Communities and other officers where relevant. 
 
6. Each potential property investment will undergo a quantitative and qualitative appraisal and 

risk assessment to establish portfolio suitability and the legal and financial implications of the 
purchase.  

 
7. All due diligence findings will be included in the reporting procedure. The business case is to 

include reference to all areas above, the financial modelling, a risk assessment matrix and 
Strengths, Weaknesses, Opportunities and Threats (SWOT) analysis. 

 
8. An investment opportunity that does not meet the minimum criteria and investment criteria 

may have separate investment or regeneration benefits and therefore may be considered 
separately under the regeneration and development stream of the strategy.  

 
9. For a regeneration or development opportunity to be considered by the Council it must: 

 
a. Deliver a rate of return commensurate with the deemed level of risk associated 

with the investment. The financial returns from regeneration activities may be 
capital rather than revenue. If the returns are capital all the full costs will be 
capitalised; and 

b. Be accompanied by a full business case prepared by officers. 
 

10. Some of the above criteria may be reconsidered if the property is of strategic value to the 

Council and has gained Strategy & Resources Committee Approval. Strategic Value may be 

seen where a property is close to significant Council land ownership, a property gives 

economic benefits through Council ownership and or there are opportunities to change the 

use in accordance with Council priorities. 

Page 50



  

Investment Property Strategy   - Annexe B   

Acquisition Procedure 

1. Acquisition of new investment properties is to follow the following process:  

Activity Acquisition Stage and 
Timeline Guide 

a) Property identified as a potential investment by Asset 
Management or by Agents 

b) Property to be discussed with in house Legal team for 
initial review 

c) Lead officer for Asset Management to notify Chief 
Executive and the Statutory Officers (includes Head of 
Legal & Chief Finance Officer) of potentially suitable 
property and summarise to seek views 

d) If possible, obtain desktop valuation from suitably 
qualified and experienced Valuer 

e) Review the valuation against the cost of Borrowing with 
Finance 

f) Finance to undertake search of tenant to ascertain the 
tenant’s current financial status 

g) Finance to produce initial financial appraisal 
 

Initial Review 
2 to 3 weeks 

h) Make offer for property, subject where appropriate to 
any of the following: 

• Contract 

• Approval by Chief Executive, or relevant 

Committee  

• RICS Red Book valuation carried out by external 

Registered Valuer (independent of introducing 

Agent)  

• Searches 

• Legal due diligence to include receipt and 

analysis of all leases to determine landlord’s 

financial obligations 

• Disclosure of freehold title and review to ensure 

clear of any onerous restrictions. 

• Pre-acquisition survey by chartered building 

surveyor to include, if appropriate, structural, 

mechanical and electrical survey 

• Internal inspection 

• Valid Energy Performance Certificate 

• Disability Discrimination Assessment if 

appropriate 

• Environmental desktop study if search suggests 

one is appropriate 

Under Offer  
3 to 4 weeks 

Page 51



  

Activity Acquisition Stage and 
Timeline Guide 

• Asbestos or other contamination survey if 

appropriate 

• Resolution of any TUPE transfer implications 

• VAT 

• Insurance requirements 

• Tax implications 

If offer accepted: 
i) Instruct legal services to deal with contract 

documentation, searches and legal due diligence 
j) Instruct valuation 
k) Instruct surveys 
l) If appropriate based on any of the above, propose 

adjustment to purchase price to reflect the monetary 
value of any issues discovered. 
 

m) Complete any outstanding surveys/ M&E reports and 
resolve all contractual matters before exchange 

n) Complete TDC Strategic Asset Management Acquisition 
Checklist 

o) Complete full Business Case for approval in accordance 
with Financial Regulation 17.  

p) Following agreement of terms and before instructing 
exchange of contract prepare Record of Officer 
Delegated Decision Notice and advise Leader of the 
Opposition and Ward Councillors if located in the 
District prior to publication date 

q) Arrange for transfer of funds 
r) Arrange Insurance Cover  
s) Exchange Contracts, if not simultaneous with 

Completion 
 

Exchange 
1-2 weeks 

t) Complete purchase. All Documents and Management 
handed over to Asset Management to take forward as 
appropriate.  

Completion  
1 day 

 

2. Newly purchased property acquired under this strategy would be added to the existing 

portfolio. The Asset Management Team would undertake management to maintain and 

improve the performance of an investment property; or additional specialist resources may 

need to be brought in as required.  

 

 

 

 

Page 52



  

Disposal Procedure 

3.  Properties will be considered for sale based on their performance and fit for the portfolio. 

4. Any property considered for sale should be appropriately marketed. If an off-market approach 

is made and considered the property would not be sold unless the price offered is in excess of 

an independent Red Book Valuation to support such a decision  

5. A property will be disposed of in accordance with the Financial Regulations of the Council’s 

Constitution and in line with the Delegated Authority provisions in place. The lead officer for 

Asset Management will make recommendations to the Strategy & Resources Committee and 

in accordance with officer delegated powers.  

Page 53



This page is intentionally left blank



  

 
APPENDIX D 

 

Treasury Management Strategy Statement 2024/25 

1. Introduction 

 

1.1 Treasury management at Tandridge District Council is conducted within the framework of the 

Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy’s Treasury Management in the Public 

Services: Code of Practice 2021 Edition (the CIPFA Code) which requires the Council to approve 

a treasury management strategy before the start of each financial year. 

 

1.2 This report fulfils the Council’s legal obligation under the Local Government Act 2003 to have 

regard to the CIPFA Code.  Prudential Indicators and Treasury Indicators are set out in Annex 

1 and a number of treasury limits and indicators are set out below. 

 

1.3 Treasury management is the management of the Council’s cash flows, borrowing, 

investments, and the associated risks. The Council has borrowed and invested substantial 

sums of money and is therefore exposed to financial risks including the loss of invested funds 

and the revenue effect of changing interest rates. The successful identification, monitoring 

and control of financial risk are therefore central to the Council’s prudent financial 

management. 

1.4 The Council is typically cash rich in the short-term as revenue income is received before it is 

spent, but will have less cash in the long-term as capital expenditure is incurred before being 

financed. Surplus cash is invested until required, while a shortage of cash will be met by 

borrowing, to avoid excessive credit balances or overdrafts in the bank current account. 

1.5 The Treasury Management Strategy is supported by four annexes: 

• Prudential indicators – a Code requirement which supports our approach to borrowing, 

managing risk and highlighting our capital financing requirement.  

• Detailed external context – a detailed summary from Arlingclose (the Council’s Treasury 

advisors) of the current and future economic climate, risks and opportunities along with 

detailed interest rate forecasts. 

• Investment & Debt Portfolio Position as at 31 March 2023 – to highlight the range of debt 

and investments from the prior year accounts. 

• Glossary of Terms 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 55



  

 

2. External Context 

 

Economic background (provided by Arlingclose). 

 

2.1 The impact on the UK from higher interest rates and inflation, a weakening economic outlook, 

an uncertain political climate due to an upcoming general election, together with war in 

Ukraine and the Middle East, will be major influences on the Council’s treasury management 

strategy for 2024/25. 

2.2 The Bank of England (BoE) increased Bank Rate to 5.25% in August 2023, before maintaining 

this level for the rest of 2023. In December 2023, members of the BoE’s Monetary Policy 

Committee voted 6-3 in favour of keeping Bank Rate at 5.25%. The three dissenters wanted to 

increase rates by another 0.25%. 

2.3 The November quarterly Monetary Policy Report (MPR) forecast a prolonged period of weak 

Gross Domestic Product (GDP) growth with the potential for a mild contraction due to ongoing 

weak economic activity. The outlook for CPI inflation was deemed to be highly uncertain, with 

upside risks to CPI falling to the 2% target coming from potential energy price increases, strong 

domestic wage growth and persistence in price-setting. 

2.4 Office for National Statistics (ONS) figures showed CPI inflation was 3.9% in November 2023, 

down from a 4.6% rate in the previous month and, in line with the recent trend, lower than 

expected. The core CPI inflation rate declined to 5.1% from the previous month’s 5.7%, again 

lower than predictions. Looking ahead, using the interest rate path implied by financial 

markets the BoE expects CPI inflation to continue falling slowly, but taking until early 2025 to 

reach the 2% target before dropping below target during the second half 2025 and into 2026. 

2.5 ONS figures showed the UK economy contracted by 0.1% between July and September 2023. 

The BoE forecasts GDP will likely stagnate through 2024. The BoE forecasts that higher interest 

rates will constrain GDP growth, which will remain weak over the entire forecast horizon. 

2.6 The labour market appears to be loosening, but only very slowly. The unemployment rate rose 

slightly to 4.2% between June and August 2023, from 4.0% in the previous 3-month period, 

but the lack of consistency in the data between the two periods made comparisons difficult. 

Earnings growth has remained strong, but has showed some signs of easing; regular pay 

(excluding bonuses) was up 7.3% over the period and total pay (including bonuses) up 7.2%. 

Adjusted for inflation, regular pay was 1.4% and total pay 1.3%. Looking forward, the MPR 

showed the unemployment rate is expected to be around 4.25% in the second half of calendar 

2023, but then rising steadily over the forecast horizon to around 5% in late 2025/early 2026. 

2.7 Having increased its key interest rate to a target range of 5.25-5.50% in August 2023, the US 

Federal Reserve appears now to have concluded the hiking cycle. It is likely this level 

represents the peak in US rates following a more dovish meeting outcome in December 2023. 

US GDP grew at an annualised rate of 4.9% between July and September 2023, ahead of 

expectations for a 4.3% expansion and the 2.1% reading for Q2. But the impact from higher 

rates has started to feed into economic activity and growth will weaken in 2024. Annual CPI 

inflation was 3.1% in November. 

 

Page 56



  

 

Credit outlook 

2.8 Credit Default Swap (CDS) prices were volatile during 2023, spiking in March on the back of 

banking sector contagion concerns following the major events of Silicon Valley Bank becoming 

insolvent and the takeover of Credit Suisse by UBS. After then falling back in Q2 of calendar 

2023, in the second half of the year, higher interest rates and inflation, the ongoing war in 

Ukraine, and now the Middle East, have led to CDS prices increasing steadily. 

2.9 On an annual basis, CDS price volatility has so far been lower in 2023 compared to 2022, but 

this year has seen more of a divergence in prices between ringfenced (retail) and non-

ringfenced (investment) banking entities once again. 

2.10 Moody’s revised its outlook on the UK sovereign to stable from negative to reflect its view of 

restored political predictability following the volatility after the 2022 mini-budget. Moody’s 

also affirmed the Aa3 rating in recognition of the UK’s economic resilience and strong 

institutional framework. 

2.11 Following its rating action on the UK sovereign, Moody’s revised the outlook on five UK banks 

to stable from negative and then followed this by the same action on five rated local 

authorities. However, within the same update the long-term ratings of those five local 

authorities were downgraded. 

2.12 There remain competing tensions in the banking sector, on one side from higher interest rates 

boosting net income and profitability against another of a weakening economic outlook and 

likely recessions that increase the possibility of a deterioration in the quality of banks’ assets. 

2.13 However, the institutions on our adviser Arlingclose’s counterparty list remain well-capitalised 

and their counterparty advice on both recommended institutions and maximum duration 

remain under constant review and will continue to reflect economic conditions and the credit 

outlook. 

 

Interest rate forecast (December 2023) 

 

2.14 Although UK inflation and wage growth remain elevated, the Council’s treasury management 

adviser Arlingclose forecasts that Bank Rate has peaked at 5.25%.  The Bank of England’s 

Monetary Policy Committee will start reducing rates in 2024 to stimulate the UK economy 

but will be reluctant to do so until it is sure there will be no lingering second-round effects.  

Arlingclose sees rate cuts from Q3 2024 to a low of around 3% by early-mid 2026. 

2.15 Arlingclose expects long-term gilt yields to be broadly stable at current levels (amid 

continued volatility), following the decline in yields towards the end of 2023, which reflects 

the expected lower medium-term path for Bank Rate. Yields will remain relatively higher 

than in the past, due to quantitative tightening and significant bond supply.  As ever, there 

will undoubtedly be short-term volatility due to economic and political uncertainty and 

events. 

2.16 A more detailed economic and interest rate forecast provided by Arlingclose is in the 

Appendix D TMS Annex 2. 

Page 57



  

 

 

 

3. Local Context: 

 

3.1 The underlying need to borrow for capital purposes is measured by the Capital Financing 

Requirement (CFR), while usable reserves and working capital are the underlying resources 

available for investment.  The Council’s current strategy is to maintain borrowing and 

investments below their underlying levels, sometimes known as internal borrowing.  

 

3.2 Internal borrowing allows the Council to utilise its internal cash balances (i.e. working capital 

and reserves) which are not required in the short to medium-term in order to reduce risk and 

keep interest costs low. Forecast gross external debt and capital financing requirement are 

shown in the table 1 below. 

Table 1: Prudential Indicator: Forecast Gross External Debt and the Capital Financing 

Requirement 

 31.3.2023 

Actual £m  

31.3.2024 

Estimate 

£m  

31.3.2025 

Estimate 

£m 

31.3.2026 

Estimate £m  

31.3.2027 

Estimate £m 

HRA Debt  56.0 66.0 73.6 86.9 94.1 

General Fund 

External Debt 

43.4 43.4 43.4 43.4 43.4 

Other Long-Term 

Liabilities 

0 0 0 0 0 

Total Debt 99.4 109.4 117.0 130.3 137.5 

Capital Financing 

Requirement 

108.4 114.0 122.1 135.0 141.7 

CFR not funded by 

Borrowing 

9.0 4.6 5.1 4.7 4.2 

 

3.3 CIPFA’s Prudential Code for Capital Finance in Local Authorities recommends that the Council’s 

total debt should be lower than its highest forecast CFR over the next three years.  Table 1 

shows that the Council expects to comply with this recommendation across the medium-term. 

 

3.4 Liability benchmark: To compare the Council’s actual borrowing against an alternative 

strategy, a liability benchmark has been calculated showing the lowest risk level of borrowing. 

This assumes the same forecasts as table 14 above, but that cash and investment balances are 

kept to a minimum level of £10m at each year-end to maintain sufficient liquidity but minimise 

credit risk. 

 

 

Page 58



  

3.5 The liability benchmark is an important tool to help establish whether the Council is likely to 

be a long-term borrower or long-term investor in the future, and so shape its strategic focus 

and decision making. The liability benchmark itself represents an estimate of the cumulative 

amount of external borrowing the Council must hold to fund its current capital and revenue 

plans while keeping treasury investments at the minimum level required to manage day-to-

day cash flow. 

 

Table 2: Prudential Indicator: Liability Benchmark 

 

Position at 31 March  2022/23 

Actual £m 

2023/24 

Projected 

£m 

2024/25 

Estimated 

£m 

2025/26 

Estimated 

£m 

2026/27 

Estimated 

£m 

Loans CFR 108.8 114.0 122.1 135.0 141.7 

External borrowing -99.4 -96.3 -92.8 -89.2 -85.2 

Internal (over) borrowing 9.3 17.7 29.3 45.8 56.5 

Balance sheet resources -19.3 -19.3 -19.3 -19.3 -19.3 

Investments/ (new borrowing) -10 -1.6 10 26.5 37.2 

      

Treasury investments 9.9 10 10 10 10 

New borrowing -0.1 8.4 20 36.5 47.2 

      

Net loans requirement 89.4 94.7 102.8 115.7 122.4 

Liquidity allowance 10 10 10 10 10 

Liability benchmark 99.4 104.7 112.8 125.7 132.4 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 59



  

Graph 1: Liability Benchmark 

 

 
 

3.6 The long-term liability benchmark assumes: 

 

• Capital expenditure funded by borrowing as per the 2024-2027 Capital Programme, 

with no further assumed expenditure factored in beyond this period; 

• Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP) on new capital expenditure is based on the MRP 

Policy in Appendix A; 

• Reserves and Balances are based on proposed and approved use over the life of the 

Medium-term Financial Plan (MTFS) and increase by inflation thereafter; and 

• The benchmark is based on our assumptions on capital expenditure and the external 

loans requirement may not ultimately reduce to zero as future capital expenditure is 

approved. 

 

3.7 Overall, the liability benchmark shows that we are currently borrowing exactly what we need, 

because the amount of external debt (grey shaded area) matches the liability benchmark (red 

line). As we progress over the medium term, the gap between total external debt and the 

liability benchmark grows, meaning that we need to borrow more money to meet our 

financing requirement. We aim to avoid a scenario where our external debt exceeds our 

liability benchmark, as it indicates that we are borrowing more than we need – i.e borrowing 

to invest, carrying with it an increased risk of investment returns. 

 

3.8 In the short term, the difference between the CFR (underlying need to borrow – represented 

by the blue line) and actual external borrowing is funded from Reserves and Balances (internal 

borrowing). 

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

140

160

2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 2030 2031 2032 2033 2034 2035 2036 2037 2038 2039 2040 2041 2042 2043 2044 2045 2046 2047 2048

£m
Liability Benchmark - Tandridge DC

Fixed rate loans Loans CFR Liability benchmark Net loans requirement

Page 60



  

4. Borrowing Strategy 

4.1 The Council’s main objective when borrowing money is to strike an appropriate balance 

between securing low interest costs and achieving certainty of those costs over the period for 

which funds are required.  To achieve this, the key aim is to maximise internal borrowing and 

use cash surpluses to avoid the need to borrow externally until needed. The Council does not 

borrow to invest for the primary purpose of financial return and therefore retains full access 

to the Public Works Loans Board. 

 

4.2 By maximising internal borrowing, the Council is able to supress net borrowing costs (despite 

foregone investment income) and limit market and credit risk in the investment portfolio. 

 

4.3 The benefits of internal borrowing will be monitored regularly against the potential for 

incurring additional costs by deferring borrowing into future years when long-term borrowing 

are uncertain. Arlingclose will assist the Council with this ‘cost of carry’ and breakeven analysis. 

Short-term interest rates are currently at a 15-year high but are expected to fall in the coming 

years and it is therefore likely to be more cost effective over the medium-term to either use 

internal resources, or to borrow short-term loans instead. 

 

4.4 The Council could consider short-term low rate borrowing from counterparties such as other 

local authorities if it had a temporary cash shortfall that needed to be addressed, rather than 

committing unnecessarily to long-term lending before it is needed. 

 

4.5 Alternatively, the Council may arrange forward starting loans where the interest rate is fixed 

in advance, but the cash is received in later years. This would enable certainty of cost without 

suffering a cost of carry in the intervening period. 

 

4.6 Sources of borrowing: The approved sources of long-term and short-term borrowing are: 

• HM Treasury’s Public Works Loan Board (PWLB); 

• any institution approved for investments (see below); 

• banks or building societies authorised to operate in the UK; 

• UK Local Authorities; 

• UK public and private sector pension funds (except the Surrey Pension Fund); 

• capital market bond investors;  

• retail investors via a regulated peer-to-peer platform; and 

• UK Municipal Bonds Agency plc and other special purpose companies created to 

enable Local Authority bond issues. 

 

4.7 The Council has previously raised its long-term borrowing from the PWLB.  For short-term 

borrowing if it was considered necessary in the future the Council could use other sources of 

finance, such as loans from other Local Authorities, pension funds and other public bodies as 

these are often available at more favourable rates.  These short-term loans leave the Council 

exposed to the risk of interest rate rises and are therefore subject to the interest rate exposure 

limits in the treasury management indicators below. 

 

Page 61



  

4.8 Under the Prudential Code, an authority must not borrow to invest primarily for financial 

return. It is not prudent for local authorities to make any investment or spending decision that 

will increase the capital financing requirement, and so may lead to new borrowing, unless 

directly and primarily related to the functions of the authority and where any financial returns 

are either related to the financial viability of the project in question or otherwise incidental to 

the primary purpose. Authorities with commercial land and property may invest in maximising 

its value, including repair, renewal and updating of the properties. This Strategy certifies that 

the Council’s capital spending plans do not include the acquisition of assets primarily for yield. 

 

4.9 Other sources of debt finance: In addition, capital finance may be raised by the following 
methods that are not borrowing, but may be classed as other debt liabilities: 

• leasing 

• hire purchase 

• sale and leaseback 

• similar asset based finance 
 
All such sources of finance are subject to a robust options appraisal. 
 

4.10 Municipal Bonds Agency: UK Municipal Bonds Agency plc was established in 2014 by the Local 

Government Association as an alternative to the PWLB.  It issues bonds on the capital markets 

and lends the proceeds to local authorities.  This is a more complicated source of finance than 

the PWLB for two reasons: borrowing authorities will be required to provide bond investors 

with a guarantee to refund their investment in the event that the agency is unable to for any 

reason; and there will be a lead time of several months between committing to borrow and 

knowing the interest rate payable. Any decision to borrow from the Agency will therefore be 

the subject of a separate report. 

4.11 Debt rescheduling: The PWLB allows Local Authorities to repay loans before maturity and 

either pay a premium or receive a discount according to a set formula based on current 

interest rates. Other lenders may also be prepared to negotiate premature redemption terms. 

The Council may take advantage of this and replace some loans with new loans, or repay loans 

without replacement, where this is expected to lead to an overall cost efficiency or a reduction 

in risk. The recent rise in interest rates means that more favourable debt rescheduling 

opportunities should arise than in previous years. 

Borrowing Costs 

4.12 Gross borrowing costs include interest payable and the statutory charge on the general fund 

for MRP.  The borrowing costs associated with the 2024/25 to 2026/27 General Fund capital 

Programme start at £2.4m in 2024/25 and increase to £2.7m in 2025/26, before increasing 

again to £2.9m in 2026/27. 

 

4.13 Net borrowing costs are calculated after offsetting interest and investment income and over 

the same period, net borrowing costs grow from £0.2m in 2024/25 to £0.6m in 2026/27. 

 

Page 62



  

5. Treasury Investment Strategy 

5.1 Objectives: The CIPFA Code requires the Council to invest its treasury funds prudently, and to 

have regard to the security and liquidity of its investments before seeking the highest rate of 

return, or yield. The Council’s objective when investing money is to strike an appropriate 

balance between risk and return, minimising the risk of incurring losses from defaults and the 

risk of receiving unsuitably low investment income. Where balances are expected to be 

invested for more than one year, the Council will aim to achieve a total return that is equal or 

higher than the prevailing rate of inflation, in order to maintain the spending power of the sum 

invested.  The Fund Manager Selection report on this Investment Sub Committee agenda sets 

out a proposed approach. The Council aims to be a responsible investor and will consider 

environmental, social and governance (ESG) issues when investing. 

5.2 Strategy: As demonstrated by the liability benchmark above, the Council expects to be a long-

term borrower and new treasury investments will therefore be made primarily to manage day-

to-day cash flows using short-term low risk instruments.  Existing investments will be reviewed 

on a regular basis for appropriateness of size, length of investment and counterparty, referring 

to the Government’s policy on statutory overrides and the current performance of each 

investment. 

 

5.3 Money Market Funds (MMFs) and short-term bank deposits will be utilised, with a cash limit 

per counterparty/fund of £4m per bank and £5m per MMF. The limits for MMFs have been 

increased from £4m to ensure sufficient capacity for cash management in the short term. If 

the economic situation changes, which results in a decision to undertake additional borrowing, 

resulting in higher cash balances, other investment counterparties may be considered and the 

counterparty limits set out below would apply. 

 

5.4 Business models: Under the new International Financial Reporting Standard (IFRS 9) standard, 

the accounting for certain investments depends on the Council’s “business model” for 

managing them.  The new standard requires entities to account for expected credit losses in a 

timely manner; from the moment when financial instruments are first identified.  These 

investments will continue to be accounted for at amortised cost.  

 

5.5 Approved counterparties: The Council may invest its surplus funds with any of the 
counterparty types in Table 2 below, subject to the cash limits (per counterparty) and the time 
limits shown. 

 
 
 

  

Page 63



  

Table 3 - Approved investment counterparties and limits 

1Banks within the same group ownership are treated as one bank for limit purposes 
2Where the bank is used as a reserve account the criteria will exclude consideration of the 

long-term credit rating 
3 Minimum Credit rating required, is expressed as a Fitch rating or the equivalent S&P or 

Moodys ratings etc 
4 The Council has placed an overall limit on pooled funds of £16m 

The majority of the Council’s investments activity will be made for relatively short periods and 

in highly credit rated investments, giving priority to security and liquidity ahead of yield. In 

order that the Council is not at risk of a large single default, the maximum that will be lent to 

any one organisation (other than the UK Government) will be £2 million or £5 million per 

pooled fund. A group of banks under the same ownership will be treated as a single 

organisation for limit purposes. 

 

5.6 Minimum credit rating: Treasury investment limits are set by reference to the lowest 

published long-term credit rating from Fitch, Moody’s and Standard & Poor’s. Where available, 

the credit rating relevant to the specific investment or class of investment is used, otherwise 

the counterparty credit rating is used. However, investment decisions are never made solely 

based on credit ratings, and all other relevant factors including external advice will be taken 

into account. 

 

 

High Credit Quality 

Individual 

Monetary limit 

for initial 

investment(1) 

Aggregate 

Monetary 

Limit 

Fitch Credit rating(3) 

UK Central Government No Limit No Limit Not applicable 

UK Local Authorities 

including PCC’s 
£2m each LT: £8m Not applicable 

Banks(1) operating in the 

UK(2) 
£2m each 

LT: £8m 

ST: None 

LT:A- 

ST: F1  

Overseas Banks (subject 

to Sovereign Rating AA-) 
£2m each £8m 

LT:A- 

ST: F1 

UK building societies with 

an asset base > £1bn 
£2m each  

LT: BBB+ 

ST:F1 

UK building societies with 

an asset base < £1bn 
£1m each  

LT: A- 

ST:F1 

Money Market Funds  £5m each  ST: AAA 

Ultra Short Dated Bond 

Fund 
£4m each  ST: AAA 

    

Pooled Funds(4)    

Bond Funds without 

credit ratings 
£4m each £8m Not applicable 

Property Funds without 

credit ratings 
£4m each £4m Not applicable 

Multi Asset Funds £4m each £8m Not applicable 

Page 64



  

5.7 Banks unsecured: Accounts, deposits, certificates of deposit and senior unsecured bonds with 

banks and building societies, other than multilateral development banks. These investments 

are subject to the risk of credit loss via a bail-in should the regulator determine that the bank 

is failing or likely to fail. 

 

5.8 Banks secured: Covered bonds, reverse repurchase agreements and other collateralised 

arrangements with banks and building societies. These investments are secured on the bank’s 

assets, which limits the potential losses in the unlikely event of insolvency, and means that 

they are exempt from bail-in. Where there is no investment specific credit rating, but the 

collateral upon which the investment is secured has a credit rating, the higher of the collateral 

credit rating and the counterparty credit rating will be used to determine cash and time limits. 

The combined secured and unsecured investments in any one bank will not exceed the cash 

limit for secured investments. 

 

5.9 Government: Loans, bonds and bills issued or guaranteed by national governments, regional 

and Local Authorities and multilateral development banks. These investments are not subject 

to bail-in, and there is generally a lower risk of insolvency, although they are not zero risk. 

Investments with the UK Central Government may be made in unlimited amounts for up to 50 

years.  

 

5.10 Pooled funds: Shares or units in diversified investment vehicles consisting of the any of the 

above investment types, plus equity shares and property. These funds have the advantage of 

providing wide diversification of investment risks, coupled with the services of a professional 

fund manager in return for a fee.  Short-term Money Market Funds that offer same-day or 

short notice liquidity and very low or no price volatility by investing in short-term money 

markets. They have the advantage over bank accounts of providing wide diversification of 

investment risks, coupled with the services of a professional fund manager in return for a small 

fee. Although no sector limit applies to money market funds, the Council will take care to 

diversify its liquid investments over a variety of providers to ensure access to cash at all times. 

 

5.11 Bond, equity and property funds offer enhanced returns over the longer term but are more 

volatile in the short-term.  These allow the Council to diversify into asset classes other than 

cash without the need to own and manage the underlying investments. Because these funds 

have no defined maturity date, but are available for withdrawal after a notice period, their 

performance and continued suitability in meeting the Council’s investment objectives will be 

monitored regularly. 

 

5.12 Operational bank accounts: The Council may incur operational exposures, for example though 

current accounts, collection accounts and merchant acquiring services, to any UK bank with 

credit ratings no lower than BBB - and with assets greater than £25 billion. These are not 

classed as investments but are still subject to the risk of a bank bail-in, and balances will 

therefore, where practical, be kept below £1m. The Bank of England has stated that in the 

event of failure, banks with assets greater than £25 billion are more likely to be bailed-in than 

made insolvent, increasing the chance of the Council maintaining operational continuity.   The 

Council’s bank, HSBC, has a credit rating of AA-. 

Page 65



  

 

5.13 Risk assessment and credit ratings: Credit ratings are obtained and monitored by the Council’s 

treasury advisers, who will notify changes in ratings as they occur.  Where an entity has its 

credit rating downgraded so that it fails to meet the approved investment criteria then: 

• no new investments will be made, 

• any existing investments that can be recalled or sold at no cost will be, and 

• full consideration will be given to the recall or sale of all other existing investments 

with the affected counterparty. 

5.14 Where a credit rating agency announces that a credit rating is on review for possible 

downgrade (also known as “rating watch negative” or “credit watch negative”) so that it may 

fall below the approved rating criteria, then only investments that can be withdrawn on the 

next working day will be made with that organisation until the outcome of the review is 

announced.  This policy will not apply to negative outlooks, which indicate a long-term 

direction of travel rather than an imminent change of rating. 

 

5.15 Other information on the security of investments: The Council understands that credit ratings 

are good, but not perfect, predictors of investment default.  Full regard will therefore be given 

to other available information on the credit quality of the organisations in which it invests, 

including credit default swap prices, financial statements, information on potential 

government support, reports in the quality financial press and analysis.  No investments will 

be made with an organisation if there are substantive doubts about its credit quality. 

 

5.16 When deteriorating financial market conditions affect the creditworthiness of all 

organisations, as happened in 2008 and 2011, this is not generally reflected in credit ratings, 

but can be seen in other market measures. In these circumstances, the Council will restrict its 

investments to those organisations of higher credit quality and reduce the maximum duration 

of its investments to maintain the required level of security.  The extent of these restrictions 

will be in line with prevailing financial market conditions. If these restrictions mean that 

insufficient commercial organisations of high credit quality are available to invest the Council’s 

cash balances, then the surplus will be deposited with the UK Government via the Debt 

Management Office or invested in government treasury bills or with other Local Authorities. 

 

5.17 Liquidity management: The Council uses cash flow forecasting to determine the maximum 

period for which funds may prudently be committed.  The forecast is compiled on a prudent 

basis to minimise the risk of the Council being forced to borrow on unfavourable terms to meet 

its financial commitments. Limits on long-term investments are set by reference to the 

Council’s medium-term financial plan and cash flow forecast. 

 

Treasury Management Prudential Indicators 

 

5.18 The Council measures and manages its exposures to treasury management risks using the 

following indicators. 

5.19 Maturity structure of borrowing: This indicator is set to control the Council’s exposure to 
refinancing risk. The upper and lower limits on the maturity structure of borrowing will be: 

Page 66



  

 

Debt Maturity Profile Limits Actual 
as at 

31/03/23 

Upper 
Limit  

2025/25 

Lower 
Limit 

2024/25 

 % % % 
    
Under 1 year 
1 to 2 years 
2 to 5 years 
5 years to 10 years 

3 
7 

16 
14 

15 
15 
25 
50 

0 
0 
0 
0 

10 years to 20 years 8 50 0 
Over 20 years 52 60 0 
    

Total 100%   

 
5.20 Time periods start on the first day of each financial year. The maturity date of borrowing is 

the date of the loans are due to be repaid.  
 

5.21 Interest rate exposure: This indicator is set to control the Council’s exposure to interest rate 

risk. The indicator sets an upper limit to the impact on revenue if there were a 1% change in 

interest rates: 

 2024/25 

£m 

2025/26 

£m 

2026/27 

£m 

Upper limit on impact on revenue for a 1% change 

in interest rates 
0.4 0.4 0.4 

 

5.22 The Council’s borrowing is all held at a fixed rate, and the current treasury investment 

portfolio is all held in investments at a variable rate. There is currently a reserve set aside of 

£0.4m, which is reflected in the above indicator. Assessing the treasury investment portfolio 

as at 31 December 2023 (which is a particularly high point in terms of investment balances), 

a 1% change in interest rate would have a £0.31m impact on revenue.  

 

5.23 Long-term treasury management investments: The purpose of this indicator is to control the 

Council’s exposure to the risk of incurring losses by seeking early repayment of its 

investments. The prudential limits on the long-term treasury management investments will 

be: 

Price risk indicator 
2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 

No fixed 

date 

Limit on principal invested beyond year end £16m £16m £16m £16m 

 

Long-term investments with no fixed maturity date include strategic pooled funds and real 

estate investment trusts but exclude money market funds and bank accounts with no fixed 

maturity date as these are considered short-term. 

 

 

 

Page 67



  

Related matters  

 

5.24 There are a number of additional items that the Council is obliged by CIPFA and DLUHC to 

include in its treasury management strategy. 

 

5.25 Treasury Management Advice: Tandridge District Council has appointed Arlingclose as 

Treasury management advisers and receives specific advice on investments, debt and capital 

finance matters. 

 

5.26 Treasury Management Training: Member and Officer training needs are assessed regularly as 

part of the staff appraisal process.  Additional training will be provided as and when there is a 

change in roles and responsibilities.  The Council also benefits from the Orbis partnership 

Centre of Expertise as part of the Joint Working Arrangement with Surrey County Council, 

which provides a robust Treasury team providing day to day treasury management operational 

activities to Tandridge District Council, Surrey County Council, Brighton & Hove City Council 

and East Sussex County Council.   

Knowledge and Skills 

As part of the Joint Working arrangement with Surrey County Council: 

5.27 The Council employs professionally qualified and experienced staff in senior positions with 

responsibility for making capital expenditure, borrowing and investment decisions. The 

Council pays for officers to study towards relevant professional qualifications including 

CIPFA. 

 

5.28 All officers involved in the treasury and investment management function have access to 

relevant technical guidance and training to enable them to acquire and maintain the 

appropriate level of expertise, knowledge and skills to undertake the duties and 

responsibilities allocated to them. The Council currently employs treasury management 

advisors through Arlingclose, who provide support and guidance relating to Council’s 

Treasury Management and borrowing strategies, providing proactive advice in response to 

emerging market trends. 

 

5.29 The Orbis partnership enables the creation and development of specialist resources.  Centres 

of Expertise have been established for key areas of finance, and central teams of pooled 

expertise have been created to provide robust services which are resilient to meet the 

changing service needs of partners. 

 

5.30 Where Council staff do not have the knowledge and skills required, use is made of external 

advisers and consultants that are specialists in their field. This approach is more cost 

effective than employing such staff directly and ensures that the Council has access to 

knowledge and skills commensurate with its risk appetite. 

 

 

 

 

Page 68



  

6. Financial Implications 

 

6.1 The budget for investment income in 2024/25 is £2.3m. The budget for debt interest paid in 

2024/25 is £1.2m (GF) and £2.2m (HRA), which is based on the existing long-term fixed rate 

debt portfolio and the HRA borrowing internally from the GF to finance its capital programme.   

 

6.2 The budget for investment income is set prudently and is below the forecasts stated elsewhere 

in this report.  Surplus investment income may be added to an investment income equalisation 

reserve to ensure that any fluctuation in capital value or return can be offset in the longer-

term.  

 

6.3 Differences between the value of the HRA loans pool and the HRA’s underlying need to borrow 

(adjusted for HRA balance sheet resources available for investment) will result in a notional 

cash balance which may be positive or negative. This balance will be measured each month 

and interest transferred between the General Fund. 

 

6.4 The CIPFA Code does not prescribe any particular treasury management strategy for Local 

Authorities to adopt. The Section 151 Officer believes that the above strategy represents an 

appropriate balance between risk management and cost effectiveness.  Some alternative 

strategies, with their financial and risk management implications, are listed below. 

Alternative Impact on income and 
expenditure 

Impact on risk management 

Invest in a narrower 
range of counterparties 
and/or for shorter times 

Interest income will be lower Lower chance of losses from credit 
related defaults, but any such losses 
will be greater 

Invest in a wider range of 
counterparties and/or for 
longer times 

Interest income will be higher Increased risk of losses from credit 
related defaults, but any such losses 
may be smaller 

Borrow additional sums 
at long-term fixed 
interest rates 

Debt interest costs will rise; 
this is unlikely to be offset by 
higher investment income 

Higher investment balance leading 
to a higher impact in the event of a 
default; however long-term interest 
costs may be more certain 

Borrow short-term or 
variable loans instead of 
long-term fixed rates 

Debt interest costs will 
initially be lower 

Increases in debt interest costs will 
be broadly offset by rising 
investment income in the medium 
term, but long-term costs may be 
less certain 

Reduce level of 
borrowing 

Saving on debt interest is 
likely to exceed lost 
investment income 

Reduced investment balance 
leading to a lower impact in the 
event of a default; however long-
term interest costs may be less 
certain 

 

  

Page 69



  

APPENDIX D – Annex 1 

Prudential Indicators 2024/25 – 2026/27 

1.1 The Local Government Act 2003 requires the Council to have regard to the Chartered 
Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy’s Prudential Code for Capital Finance in Local 
Authorities (the Prudential Code) when determining how much money it can afford to 
borrow.  The objectives of the Prudential Code are to ensure, within a clear framework, that 
the capital investment plans of Local Authorities are affordable, prudent and sustainable, 
and that treasury management decisions are taken in accordance with good professional 
practice.  To demonstrate that the Council has fulfilled these objectives, the Prudential Code 
sets out the following indicators that must be set and monitored each year. 

 
1.2 The Council has adopted the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy’s 

Treasury Management in the Public Services: Code of Practice. 

Estimates of capital expenditure 

1.3 The Council’s planned capital expenditure and financing is summarised in table 1 (para 2.5) 

and table 2 (para 2.12) of the main strategy.  This prudential indicator is a summary of the 

Council’s annual capital expenditure plans, both those agreed previously, and those forming 

part of this budget cycle. 

The Council’s borrowing need (the capital financing requirement) 

1.4 Table 4 (para 2.17) of the main strategy sets out the Council’s estimated capital financing 

requirement (CFR). The CFR represents capital expenditure funded by external debt and 

internal borrowing and not by capital receipts, revenue contributions, capital grants or third 

party contributions at the time of spending. The CFR therefore measures a Council’s 

underlying need to borrow for a capital purpose. Any capital expenditure which has not been 

funded from locally determined resources will increase the CFR. The CFR will reduce by the 

Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP).  

 

1.5 The MRP is a statutory annual revenue charge which reduces the borrowing need in a similar 

way to paying principal off a household mortgage. 

 

1.6 The CFR would include any other long-term liabilities, e.g. finance leases. Whilst these 

increase the CFR, and therefore the Council’s borrowing requirement, these types of scheme 

include a borrowing facility and so the Council is not required to separately borrow for these 

schemes and they therefore do not form part of the Council’s underlying need to borrow. 

Gross borrowing and the capital financing requirement 

1.7 In order to ensure that over the medium-term borrowing will only be for a capital purpose, 
the Council should ensure that its debt does not, except in the short-term, exceed the total 
of the CFR in the preceding year plus the estimates of any additional CFR for the current and 
next 2 financial years. This allows some flexibility for early borrowing in advance of need, but 
ensures that borrowing is not undertaken for revenue purposes.  This is a key indicator of 
prudence, see Table 1, para 3.2 TMSS. Total debt is expected to remain below the CFR during 
the forecast period. 
 

Page 70



  

The Council’s authorised limit and operational boundary for external debt 

1.8 Table 1 sets out the Council’s authorised limit and operational boundary for external debt.  

 

1.9 The authorised limit represents a control on the maximum level of borrowing. It is a 

statutory limit determined under section 3(1) of the Local Government Act 2003 and 

represents a limit beyond which external debt is prohibited. It is the maximum amount of 

debt that the Council can legally owe.  

 

1.10 The operational boundary is an indicator against which to monitor its external debt position. 

It is based on the Council’s estimate of the most likely (i.e. prudent but not worst case) 

scenario for external debt.  It links directly to the Council’s estimates of capital expenditure, 

the CFR and cash flow requirements and is a key management to for in-year monitoring.   

 

1.11 Within the operational boundary, figures for borrowing and other long-term liabilities are 

separately identified.  Other long-term liabilities comprise finance lease, PFIs and other 

liabilities that are not borrowing but form part of the Council’s debt position. 

 

1.12 The operational boundary is not a limit and actual borrowing could vary around this 

boundary for short periods during the year. It should act as an indicator to ensure the 

authorised limit is not breached.  The operational boundary increases over the MTFS period 

to reflect an increasing underlying need to borrow linked to the Capital Programme.   We 

monitor against the indicator throughout the year. 

 

1.13 The Authorised limit provides headroom over and above the operational boundary for 

unusual cash movements and potential additional borrowing to meet the ambitions of the 

Council in respect of its investment strategy. 

 

Table 1: Prudential Indicators: Authorised limit and operational boundary for external debt 

 2023/24 

limit  

£m 

2024/25 

limit  

£m 

2025/26 

limit  

£m 

2026/27 

limit  

£m 

Authorised limit – borrowing 

Authorised limit – leases 

Authorised limit – total external debt 

150 

0 

150 

150 

0 

150 

155 

0 

155 

162 

0 

162 

Operational boundary – borrowing 

Operational boundary – leases 

Operational boundary – total external 

debt 

140 

0 

140 

140 

0 

140 

145 

0 

145 

152 

0 

152 

Page 71



  

 

Estimated ratio of gross financing costs to net revenue stream 

1.14 This is an indicator of affordability and highlights the revenue implications of existing and 

proposed capital expenditure by identifying the proportion of the revenue budget required 

to meet financing costs.   

 

Table 2: Prudential Indicator: Proportion of financing costs to net revenue stream 

 

2022/23 

Actual      

£m 

2023/24 

Estimate     

£m 

2024/25 

Estimate 

£m 

2025/26 

Estimate 

£m 

2026/27 

Estimate 

£m 

Net revenue stream 11.4 11.9 12.8 12.8 12.4 

General Fund – Gross Financing costs  1.1 1.2 1.3 1.3 1.4 

Proportion of GF Gross financing costs 

to net revenue stream 
10% 10% 10% 10% 11% 

 

Net income from commercial and service investments to net revenue stream   

1.15 This is an indicator of affordability and highlights the net financial impact on the authority of 

its entire non-treasury investment income.   

 

2022/23 

Actual      

£m 

2023/24 

Estimate     

£m 

2024/25 

Estimate 

£m 

2025/26 

Estimate 

£m 

2026/27 

Estimate 

£m 

Net revenue stream 11.4 11.9 12.8 12.8 12.4 

Total net income from service and 

commercial investments 
1.5 1.6 1.6 1.6 1.6 

Proportion of net income to net 

revenue stream 
13% 14% 13% 13% 13% 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 72



  

APPENDIX D - Annex 2 

Arlingclose Economic & Interest Rate Forecast – December 2023 

Underlying assumptions: 

• UK inflation and wage growth remain elevated but have eased over the past two months 

fuelling rate cuts expectations. Near-term rate cuts remain unlikely, although downside risks 

will increase as the UK economy likely slides into recession. 

• The MPC’s message remains unchanged as the Committee seeks to maintain tighter financial 

conditions. Monetary policy will remain tight as inflation is expected to moderate to target 

slowly, although some wage and inflation measures are below the Bank’s last forecasts. 

• Despite some deterioration in activity data, the UK economy remains resilient in the face of 

tighter monetary policy. Recent data has been soft but mixed; the more timely PMI figures 

suggest that the services sector is recovering from a weak Q3. Tighter policy will however 

bear down on domestic and external activity as interest rates bite. 

• Employment demand is easing. Anecdotal evidence suggests slowing recruitment and pay 

growth, and we expect unemployment to rise further. As unemployment rises and interest 

rates remain high, consumer sentiment will deteriorate. Household and  business spending 

will therefore be weak. 

• Inflation will fall over the next 12 months. The path to the target will not be smooth, with 

higher energy prices and base effects interrupting the downtrend at times. The MPC’s 

attention will remain on underlying inflation measures and wage data. We believe policy 

rates will remain at the peak for another 10 months, or until the MPC is comfortable the risk 

of further ‘second-round’ effects has diminished. 

• Maintaining monetary policy in restrictive territory for so long, when the economy is already 

struggling, will require significant loosening in the future to boost activity. 

• Global bond yields will remain volatile. Markets are currently running with expectations of 

near-term US rate cuts, fuelled somewhat unexpectedly by US policymakers themselves. 

Term premia and bond yields have experienced a marked decline. It would not be a surprise 

to see a reversal if data points do not support the narrative, but the current 10-year yield 

appears broadly reflective of a lower medium- term level for Bank Rate. 

• There is a heightened risk of fiscal policy and/or geo-political events causing substantial 

volatility in yields. 

 

Forecast: 

• The MPC held Bank Rate at 5.25% in December. Arlingclose believes this is the peak for Bank 

Rate. 

• The MPC will cut rates in the medium term to stimulate the UK economy but will be reluctant 

to do so until it is sure there will be no lingering second-round effects. We see rate cuts from 

Q3 2024 to a low of around 3% by early-mid 2026. 

• The immediate risks around Bank Rate have become more balanced, due to the weakening 

UK economy and dampening effects on inflation. This shifts to the downside in the short 

term as the economy weakens. 

• Long-term gilt yields are now substantially lower. Arlingclose expects yields to be flat from 

here over the short-term reflecting medium term Bank Rate forecasts. Periodic volatility is 

likely.  

Page 73



  

 

PWLB Standard Rate (Maturity Loans) = Gilt yield + 1.00% 
PWLB Certainty Rate (Maturity Loans) = Gilt yield + 0.80% 
PWLB HRA Rate (Maturity Loans) = Gilt yield + 0.40% 
UK Infrastructure Bank Rate (Maturity Loans) = Gilt yield + 0.40% 

 

  

Page 74



  

APPENDIX D - Annex 3 

Investment & Debt Portfolio Position as at 31 March 2023 

  
 2022/23 

Actual 

31/03/2023 

£m 

2022/23 

Actual 

31/03/2023 

% 

Notice Accounts & Cash Plus Funds 2.0 1.9 

Money Market Funds 4.0 2.2 

Short-term Deposits 0 0 

CCLA Property Fund 4.1 4.3 

Funding Circle 0.1 - 

Schroders Bond Fund 2.6 5.9 

UBS Multi-Asset Fund 2.2 6.6 

CCLA Diversification Fund 1.9 3.0 

   

Total Treasury Investments 16.9 3.1 

   

Long-term PWLB loans (HRA) 56.0 2.9 

Long-term PWLB loans (GF) 43.4 2.6 

   

Total Borrowing 99.4 2.7 

   

Net Borrowing 82.5  

 

 

 

 

  

Page 75



  

APPENDIX D - Annex 4 

 

Glossary of Terms 

CCLA – Churches, Charities and Local Authorities 

CFR – Capital Financing Requirement 

CIPFA – Chartered Institute of Public Finance Accountancy 

CPI – Consumer Price Index 

DMO – Debt Management Office 

DMADF – Debt Management Account Deposit Facility 

ECB – European Central Bank 

GDP – Gross Domestic Product 

DLUHC – Department for Levelling Up, Housing and Communities 

MiFID - Markets in Financial Instruments Directive 

MMF – Money Market Fund 

MPC – Monetary Policy Committee 

MRP – Minimum Revenue Provision 

PWLB – Public Works Loan Board 

TMSS – Treasury Management Strategy Statement 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 76


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the meeting held on the 3rd November 2023
	Annex A - Summary of Investments  Borrowing 30 September 2023
	Annex B - Market Value of Investments 30 September 2023
	Annex C - Prudential Indicator Update Q2 2023-24

	5 Capital, Investment and Treasury Management Strategy for 2024/25
	Appendix 1 - Capital Investment and Treasury Management Strategy - Final
	Appendix A (to App 1) MRP Policy Statement 24-25
	Appendix B (to App 1) Principles of governance for the capital programme
	Appendix C (to App 1) Investment Property Strategy 24-25
	Appendix D (to App1) Treasury Management Strategy Statement 24-25


